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MS. COHAN: On the r e c o r d ,  p rev ious ly ,  

Mr. Williams has  had made a v a i l a b l e  t o  him the edited 

v e r s i o n  of t h e  t r a n s c r i p t  of t h e  A t l a n t a  meeting 

t o d a y  p r i o r  to t h e  meeting of M r .  Morales'  d e p o s i t i o n  

as ordered  by t h e  Court, 

MR. WILLIAMS: That  i s  correct. 1 picked 

them up from t h e  c o u r t  ten minutes  be fo re  I came 

u p s t a i r s .  

Thereupon: 

RICARDO MORALES NAVARETTE 

c a l l e d  as a  witness on behalf af t h e  Defendants 

having been f i r e t  duly sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i f  

on his o a t h  as fol lows:  

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 
* 

Q M r ,  Morales,  i d e n t i f y  your se l f  aga in ,  f o r  

t h e  r e c o r d ,  p l e a s e ?  

A My name i s  Ricardo Morale8 Navaret te .  

I'm a human being. A l i v i n g  person with a 

l o t  of f e e l i n g s ,  
- - -  - - - -  - - - -  - - - -  - - - - -  

Q A r e  you the- s a m e  p e = 8 o n  who h a s  been - - - - - 

testifying h e r e  on depoe i t i on  f o r  t h e  p a s t  week with  

Ms, Cohan and me? 

A Y e s ,  I am. 

Q We last took tes t imony from you on 



Thursday,  which would have been A p r i l  8 t h ;  i s  t h a t  

c o r r e c t ,  s i r ?  

A When was t h e  l a s t  t ine  t h a t  w e  were 

t o g e t h e r ?  Tha t  w a s  on a Thursday,  r i g h t ,  To me, 

it was a Thursday,  

Q So, it would have  been you who gave 

t e s t imony?  

A I d o n ' t  have  a c a l e n d a r ,  

Do you have a c a l e n d a r  around t h e r e ?  I 
MS, COBAN: I t  w a s  Thursday,  

THE WITNESSx Thursday t h e  8 t h 3  

MS. COHAN: Yeo. 

THE WITNESS: Tha t  i s  c o r r e c t ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Between t h e  t i m e  w e  r e c e s s e d  your  d e p o s i t i o  

on  Thursday t h e  8 t h  and t h e  p r e s e n t ,  t e l l  m e  t h e  

peop l e  w i t h  whom you have  d i s c u s s e d  e i t h e r  t h e  f a c t  

of  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ,  i t s e l f ,  o r  any s u b s t a n t i v e  p a r t s  

p e r t a i n i n g  t o  q u e s t i o n s  o r  answers?  

A God and myse l f .  

Q f a  t h a t  t o  say, s i r ,  t h a t  you have n o t  

d i s c u s s e d  e i t h e r  t h e  f a c t  o f  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  o r  your  

t e s t imony  w i t h  anybody a t  a l l  between Thursday and 

t h i s  morning? 

A I a l r e a d y  answered t o  that q u e s t i o n .  



Q No, you d i d n ' t .  

A Yes, I d i d ,  

Q Give m e  a yes or no, M r .  Morales. 

Have you diecussed t h e  depos i t ion  w i t h  

anybody o r  not?  

A No , 

Q Have you had any con tac t  w i t h  Raul D i a z  

between Thursday when w e  recessed and t h e  present?  

A No 0 

Am I forbidden t o  make any con tac t s  w i t h  

Raul Diaz a t  a l l ?  

Q Ask t h e  prosecutor.  

A I'm asking the prosecutor ,  

Q Well, now i s  not t h e  time t o  do it, 

You a r e  on depos i t ion  now, Right now, you a r e  on 

depoqit ion.  Talk t o  her  af terwards.  

A That means t h a t  I can't pick up whoever 

I want t o  t a l k  t o ?  

Q M r .  Morales, have you had any conversat ion 

with a  man by t h e  name of F e l i z  Rodriguez in t h e  p a s t  

s i x  months? 

A Who? 

Q F e l i x  Rodriguez? 

A I n  t he  p a s t  s i x  months? 

Q Yes. 



A I don't know at this point in time 

anybody by the name of Feliz Rodriguez, 

Q Do you know anybody by the name of Feliz 

Rodriguez? 

A There could have been 150 Feliz Rodriguez', 

Q Tell me if you know anybody by that name? 

A I can't recall right now if I know anybody 

by the name of Feliz Rodriguez. 

Feliz the cat? 

MS. COHAN: No. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

who were, you know, tyrannizing my country. 

Q Between 1980, the beginning of 1980 and the 

Q Do you know now, or have you, at any time, 

between 1980 and the present known a man by the name 

of Feliz Rodriguez Menduguita? 

A Whpt's the name again? 

Q Menduguita, Feliz Rodriguez Menduguita? 

A I believe I have heard that Menduguita 

last name since my childhood days in Cuba. 

There was some sort of a minister for, you 

know, at the time, the dictatorship, that is right, 

running the military dictatorship, that was running 

my country, I believe that there was a man Menduguiti 

that wae a minister in eome capacity with the genera11 
I 



p r e s e n t ,  have you known and/or  had any communication 

of any  s o r t  w i t h  one F e l i z  Rodriguez Menduguita? 

A I d o n ' t  b e l i e v e  that I know ~ e l i z  Rodriguez 

Menduguita.  

Q Have you known any such p e r s o n  i n  t h e  p a s t  

i f  you d o n ' t  know him now? 

A I d o n ' t  b e l i e v e ,  a s  f a r  as I c a n  recall, 

any F e l i z  Rodriguez Menduguita. 

Q D o  you know some o t h e r  pe r son  w i t h  the l a s t  

names of  Rodriguez Menduguita h e r e  i n  t h e  Uni ted  

S t a t e s ?  . 
A I already answered to t h a t  q u e s t i o n .  I 

d o n ' t  know any  Rodriguez Menduguita. 

Q Do you now know, or have you, at any  t i m e ,  

s i n c e  J a n u a r y  of 1979 known a man by t h e  name of  

Rafael Q u i n t e r o ?  

From when? 

Between J anua ry ,  1979  and the p r e s e n t ?  

J anua ry  i n  1979 and t h e  p r e s e n t ?  

Ye-8- .- - - - - - - - - - 
- - - - - -  - - - - - -  - - - - - - -  - - - - - -  

I f  I have s e e n  Rafael Q u i n t e r o ?  

Do you know such  a man? 

Yes,  I know wh.0 Rafae l  Q u i n t e r o  is .  

Who do you know him t o  be? 

Chi Chi Q u i n t e r o .  



Q What do you know of  him i n  terms o f  h i s  

f u n c t i o n  o r  b u s i n e s s  o r  p o s i t i o n ?  

A A t  one  p o i n t ,  he was a P . A .  f o r  t h e  C e n t r a l  

~ n t e l l i g e n c e  Agency. 

Q A what? 

A P.A. That means P r i n c i p a l  Agent. 

Q What else do you know a b o u t  him? 

A Nothing  else. T h a t  w a 6  h i s  s t a t u s  many 

y e a m  ago. 

Q Have you had c o n t a c t  e i t h e r  i n  p e r s o n  

o r  t h r o u g h  any  o t h e r  e l e c t r o n i c  means w i t h  the one  

whom you known as Chi Chi Q u i n t e r o  be tween J a n u a r y ,  

1979  and t h e  p r e s e n t ?  

A N o ,  sir. 

Q M r .  Morales, do you know a man by t h e  name 

o f  R i c a r d o  Chavez? 

A 1 n e v e r  m e t  him p e r s o n a l l y .  

I know -- i f  you are r e f e r r i n g  t o  t h e  same 

R i c a r d o  Chavez, a l s o  known as t h e  Mexican? 

Q T h a t  is t h e  one .  
- - - - - - 

- - - - - Fi-ie- -ou , - - - - 
A 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
- - - - - - - - - - - - 

Rina, I have t o  t a l k  t o  you i n  p r i v a t e .  

MS. COHAN: Okay. 

MR. W I L L I A M S :  Wait  a m i n u t e ,  M r .  Mora les .  

THE WITNESSr No, no way, no. No, no way, 



9 

no ,  because  you are n o t  go ing  t o  make m e  b r eak  t h e  

l a w ;  okay? No way, no. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Mr. Morales ,  you are t h e  

w i t n e s s  h e r e ,  Remember? 

THE WITNESS: W a i t ,  no. N O ,  I a m  g e t t i n g  

u p s e t .  Do you know why? 

MS. COBAN: Just a minute.  S top  f i g h t i n g  

u n t i l  I g e t  o f f  t h e  phone. 

THE WITNESS: No, no, no, because  t h e r e  i s  

go ing  t o  be a  law i n t o  effect because  i f  you d i s c l o s e  

t h e  i d e n t i t y  of any I n t e l l i g e n c e  Agent,  and 1 d o n ' t  

know i f  t h e y  s t i l l  are o r  w i l l  b e ,  you a re  s u b j e c t  t o  

p r o s e c u t i o n  by t h e  Federal government,  No, M r .  

Whatever i s  your  name. No, no,  no, and no. 

I would l i k e  t o  c o n f e r  w i t h  you, Ms. Cohan. 

M S .  COHAN: P l e a s e ,  I would be -- 
MR. WILLIAMS: Let's have you remember, 

s i r ,  t h a t  you are n o t  runn ing  t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n ,  and 

your  concern  f o r  the v i o l a t i o n  of  t h e  law -- 
THE WITNESS: You a r e  n o t  r unn ing  my l i f e ,  

e i t h e r .  

MS. COHAN: A t  t h i s  p o i n t ,  we w i l l  take 

a f i v e  minute  recess. A l l  p a r t i e s  calm down. 

THE WITNESS: You a r e  n o t  r unn ing  my l i f e .  

MR. WILLIAMS: Don' t  p o i n t  your  f i n g e r  at 



me, 

THE WITNESS: I don't care what you said. 

I don't care, Same way that you don't care about me, 

1 don't care about you, so let's talk niceties, 

I took the gloves off the last time that 

I talked to you, 

MR. WILLIAMS: NOW, look, 

THE WITNESS: NO, I don't want to look. 

MR. WILLIAMS: When there is a question 

pending, you answer the question, If you want to 

get on a God-damn soapbox, then do it with Officer 

Diaz or Mr. Puig, and not with me on my deposition. 

THE WITNESS2 You are referring to Mr. Puig 

and Mr. Diaz -- 
MR. WILLIAMS: Keep your mouth shut. 

THE WITNESS: Are you tellkng me to keep 

my mouth shut? 

MR. WILLIAMS: You're God-damn right, 

THE WITNESS: God-damn right what? 

MR. WILLIAMS: You're a little old for me 

to pick on, pal, You could push me, and I'll whack yo 

up beside the head. 
w a .  

THE WITNESS: You're going to whack me? 

Come on. Come on. 

OFFICER PUIG: Take it easy. Let's conduct 

this in a professional manner. 



THE WITNESS: That's what you s a i d  -- , ,, l,, 

t h a t  you a r e  g o i n g  t o  whack m e ?  

MR. WILLIAMS: I f  you g i v e  m e  t h e  o p p o r t u n i  r 
THE WITNESSz R i g h t  now, I ' m  g i v i n g  you t h e  

o p p o r t u n i t y ,  

OFFICER PUIG: Take it e a s y .  L e t ' s  c o o l  

it. L e t ' s  c o o l  it o f f ,  

Ricky,  l e t ' s  take a r e c e s s ,  

(Off t h e  r e c o r d , )  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : I 
Q Now, t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  Morale., is whe the r  I 

you know R i c a r d o  Chavez . r h o  i s  a l s o  knqyn a s  t he  I 
Mexican? 

A I n e v e r  met him i n  my l i f e ,  

Q Where d o  you know h i s  name? 

A From former  companions from the  C o n g o l i s t  

Q Do you know a man by t h e  name of  Rolando 

M a r t i n e z ?  

A Y e s ,  I do,  

Q Do you know h i s  niakname o r  s treet  name, 

as  it were? 

Q Do you know a n y , p e o p l e  who are r e l a t e a  t o  

him, e i t h e r  by b lood  o r  by m a r r i a g e ?  



A Yes. 

Q Of his relatives, either by blood or by 

marriage, whom do you know? 

A Raul Diaz, Lieutenant Raul Diaz. 

Q How do you know Lieutenant Diaz  to be 

related to Muscolito? 

A Lieutenant Diaz' former wife's mother got 

married with Mr. Rolando Martinez. 

'2 When did Lieutenant Diaz' marriage to 

Mr. Martinez' daughter-in-law terminate? 

A I don't know, 

Q Within the last year or two years or five 

years? 

A I don't know, 

Q When is the last time that you have had 

contact, either face to face or through some other 

means, with that Rolando Martinez? 

A S i x  years, 

Q Do you know the occupation or profession 

of that Rolando Martinez? 

A I don't. 

Q Do you know what it was six years ago? 

A Neither, 

Q You expressed some concern a while ago 

during the exchange between us about violating some 



law t h a t  you t hough t  t o  e x i s t  r e l a t i v e  t o  t h e  

d i s c l o s u r e  o f  names of peop le  who might  be working 

in s e n s i t i v e  p o s i t i o n s  f o r  t h e  government p r e s e n t l y ;  

i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A That  is c o r r e c t .  

0 Is it a l s o  c o r r e c t  t o  s a y ,  M r .  Mora les ,  

t h a t  you do n o t  g e n e r a l l y  concern  y o u r s e l f  w i t h  

whether  an  a c t  o r  an  i n c i d e n t  i s  o r  migh t  be  a g a i n s t  

t h e  l aws  of t h i s  S t a t e  o r  o f  t h e  Uni ted  S t a t e s ?  

A I do n o t  unde r s t and  your q u e s t i o n .  

Q L e t  me p u t  it t o  you a n o t h e r  way. 

There have been p l e n t y  o f  o c c a s i o n s  upon 

which you engaged i n  acts  which you knew t o  be 

v i o l a t i o n s  o f  t h e  laws e i t h e r  o f  t h i s  State  o r  t h i s  

c o u n t r y ;  i s n ' t  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A That  i s  c o r r e c t .  As p a r t  o f  t h e  s eman t i c s  

Q Then, it sounds as though,  c o r r e c t  m e  i f  

I a m  wrong, t h a t  when you t h i n k  it t o  your advan tage  

o r  conven ience  t o  do s o ,  you concern  y o u r s e l f  w i t h  

whether  a c t s  are o r  n o t  v i o l a t i o n s  o f  t h e  law,  b u t  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - - - -  

when it isn't t o  your advantage  t o  be t h u s  concerned ,  

t h e n ,  you d i s r e g a r d  t h a t  f a c t ;  i s  t h a t  a c c u r a t e ?  

A You a re  p u t t i n g  words i n  my mouth. 

Q I a m  asking you i f  i t ' s  a c c u r a t e  o r  n o t ?  

A You a r e  p u t t i n g  words in my mouth. 



Q Answex me yes or no, and then, explain, 

A You are putting words in my mouth. 

Q Answer ye6  or no; if you can. 

A You are putting words in my mouth. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Certify the witness' 

answer, please, 

Would you like to attempt to answer that 

question, or would you prefer not to? 

A The way that you are putting up the 

question to me, it's like you are putting words in 

my mouth, 

If you rephrase it in a different, easy 

way for me to answer it to you without putting words 

in my mouth, I will be glad to answer it to you, 

Q Are there times when you concern yourself 

with whether a particular act or incident is or might 

be a violation of the law8 when it goes to your 

advantage to have that in mind? 

A I am not saying about advantage. You know, 

you are putting words in my mouth again. You know, 

-r don' t t-ttke advantage o f  anything.- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
- - - -  

I am just concerned about violation of the 

law right now. 

Q Can you answer that question for me yes or 

no? 



A Which one? 

Q The one t h a t  I j u s t  asked you? 

A Repeat it aga in .  

Q Is it t h e  c a s e  t h a t  when it i s  t o  your 

advantage t o  be concerned w i t h  whether  o r  not a  

p a r t i c u l a r  ac t  i s  a  v i o l a t i o n  of the law, t h a t  you 

t h e n  concern y o u r s e l f  w i th  t h a t  k ind  of l e g a l i t y ?  

A N o .  

Q What i s  d i f f e r e n t  p r e s e n t l y  t h a n  in the 

past f o u r t e e n  y e a r s  a t  which time t h e  p a t t e r n  of  

bombings t h a t  you d e s c r i b e d  t o  u s  commenced t h a t  cause 

you t o  be concerned wi th  whether a p a r t i c u l a r  act  i n  

which you are asked t o  engage is a v i o l a t i o n  of t h e  

law? 

A , Because whatever I do, I d i d  it -- it was 

done by my pe r son ,  80 t h e  people  you are asking m e  

q u e s t i o n s  now, I d o n ' t  know where t h e y  a r e  now, what 

t h e y  might  have been engaged i n t o ,  and I am n o t  

p r i v y  t o  d i s c l o s e  any th ing  about  them s i n c e  1 d o n ' t  

know any th ing  about  what t h e y  might be doing ,  and 

s i n c e  t h e y  were -old - - hands, - - - f d o n ' t  know i f  t h e r e  a r e  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - 

new hands o r  n o t ,  s o  j u s t  -- I b e l i e v e  that you 

unders tand  what I a m  saying now? 

Q Then, i f  I unders tand  it, your concern i s  

f o r  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  you might compromise people  i n  t h e  



Intelligence community; is that correct? 

A That is correct, Mr. Williams. 

Q And those are people about whom you feel 

a certain kind of affinity because of the work that 

you have done in the past; is that right? 

A That is right, Mr. Williams. 

Q Then, it is because of the affinity that 

you feel for them? 

A It is not an affinity. 

Q Mr. Morale6 -- 
MS. COHAN: Objection, He is not through 

answering, 

THE WITNESS: It is not the affinity. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Now, wait, Mr. Morales. 

A It is not an affinity, Whatever I might 

know could be used, could be used by the enemy, 

counterintelligence, to surrogates since these pro- 

ceedings are a matter of record, public record, 

I'm sorry -- let me correct myself -- it 
cari be -use& -by-th-srternp ~unterhtelLFgence, a h d -  - 

might jeopardize the lives of the so-called 

individuals with whom I truly have a deep affinity. 

Q You are, therefore -- 
A I am more concerned about them than with 



myself . 
Q You are, t h e r e f o r e ,  r e l y i n g  upon what you 

t h i n k  t o  be a p r o ~ i s i o n ~ o f  t h e  law t h a t  a l l o w s  you 

t o  give s t r e n g t h  o r  e f f e c t  t o  pour a f f i n i t y  w i t h  

t h e s e  peop le ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A What was t h a t ?  You t a l k i n g  l e g a l  m a t t e r s .  

I'm n o t  a n  a t t o r n e y .  

0 A r e  you r e l y i n g  upon -- 
A Relying upon a what? 

Q M r .  Morales ,  i f  you have a problem w i t h  

my language -- 
A With your l e g a l  language,  d e f i n i t e l y ,  

because I am n o t  a n  a t t o r n e y .  

Q You ask t h e  prosecutor or  one of pour 

companions -- M r .  Diaz and M r .  Puig  -- 
A I d o n u t  have companions with me. I have 

p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s  w i t h  me. 

Q (Cont inuing)  -- t o  s t r a i g h t  it o u t .  

I n  t h e  meantime, i f  you d o n ' t  have a probl t  

w i t h  t h e  l anugage ,  t h e n  d o n ' t  i n t e r r u p t  m e  anymore, 

because  I ' m  g e t t i n g  t i r e d  o f  it. I r e a l l y  am. 

A So a m  I. 

MS.COHANz Ob jec t i on .  Argumentat ive.  

Harass ing .  

MR. WILLIAMS: I am h a r d l y  a r g u i n g  w i t h  



t h e  w i t n e s s .  

MS. COHAN: M r .  Wi l l i ams ,  i f  you and 

M r .  Morales  would s t o p  b i c k e r i n g  w i t h  each  o t h e r  -- 
MR. WILLIAMS: I am t i r e d  of t h e  o u t b u r s t s  

by  M r .  Morales .  

TRE WITNESS: You are t h e  one w i t h  the 

o u t b u r a t s .  

X a m  n o t  a n  a t t o r n e y ,  I a m  a v e r y  s imp le  

man who i s  used  t o  a  d i f f e r e n t  k i n d  of language, so 

what you might  be r e f e r r i n g  t o  s u g a r ,  X might  refer  

to as, you know, coconu ts .  

MR. WILLIAMS: I w i l l  c e r t a i n l y  a g r e e  w i t h  

p a r t  of your  l a s t  s t a t e m e n t ,  b u t  i n  any e v e n t ,  t h e  

way a  d e p o s i t i o n  i e  conduc ted ,  and you are f a m i l i a r  

w i t h  p roceed ings  i n  t h e  c o u r t s  of  t h i s  S t a t e  and 

Country ,  i s  t h a t  a f t e r  a q u e s t i o n  has been  comple ted ,  

i f  there i s  a  pa r t  of it you d o n ' t  u n d e r s t a n d ,  t e l l  

me, and i f  you choose  n o t  t o  t e l l  me, t e l l  it t o  t h e  

p r o s e c u t o r ,  Don ' t  i n t e r r u p t  m e  anymore i n  t h e  middle  

o f  a q u e a t i o n .  
- - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
- - - - -  

THE WITNESS: Don't  i n t e r r u p t  m e  anymore - - 

i n  t h e  midd le  of  an  answer.  

BY MR. WILLIAMSt 

Q I have r e f r a i n e d  from doing t h a t ,  a i r ,  

and l e t  m e  remind you, t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n  i s  n o t  a 



soapbox or stage for you to perform to whatever you 

conceive your audience to be. 

A You are the performance so far. 

Q If I ask you a question that you can answer 

answer it. Save m e  the speeches. 

A And the money, 

Q Yes, that, too. 

A Sure, 

Q Now, here's the question: Do I understand 

your testimony to be that because you think it will 

be helpful to people with whom you have an affinity 

or feel you have an affinity, that you are relying 

upon what you think the law to be in order to allow 

you to give effect to your desire to avoid causing 

them a problem? Is that what you are doing -- 
relying on the law for that? 

A I am not lying. 

Q 1 said, relying on the law for that -- is 
that what you are doing -- relying on what you think 

the law to be? 

MS. COBANt Objection, At this point, 

Mr. Morale8 has not refused to answer any questions. 

THE WITNESS: I am not refusing to answer 

any questions, 

Why don't you start again, you know, makin5 



q u e s t i o n s ?  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Here's my q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  Moralea -- 
A O h ,  Jesus C h r i s t .  

Q A r e  you now r e l y i n g  upon what  you t h i n k  th t  

law t o  b e  towards  t h e  end o f  a l l o w i n g  you to h e l p  

p e o p l e  w i t h  whom you f e e l  you have  a n  a f f i n i t y ?  Is 

t h a t  what you a r e  d o i n g ?  

A N o ,  M r .  Wi l l i ams .  Let's keep on g o i n g  

w i t h  wha tever  it is. 

Q T h e  answer t o  my l a s t  q u e s t i o n  is  no? 

A I a l r e a d y  answered it. 

Q When was t h e  f i r s t  time you c a n  t h i n k  o f ,  

M r .  Mora les ,  t h a t  you made some s t a t e m e n t  o r  gave 

some i n f o r m a t i o n  t o  somebody connec ted  w i t h  law 

e n f o r c e m e n t  i n  any c a p a c i t y  when t h e  s t a t e m e n t  t h a t  

you made o r  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  you gave t u r n e d  o u t  

n o t  t o  be t r u e ?  When was t h e  f i r s t  such i n c i d e n t  t h a  

t h a t  o c c u r r e d ?  

A I f  it ever o c c u r r e d ,  I have  no r e c o l l e c t i o .  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

of it. - - - - - - -  

Q Is it your  t e s t i m o n y ,  s ir ,  t h a t  you have 

n e v e r ,  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  of any o f  your  e n c o u n t e r s  w i t h  

anybody from law enforcement ,  whe the r  a p r o s e c u t o r  

o r  a n  a g e n t ,  e v e r  t o l d  any such  person a n y t h i n g  t h a t  



you knew at the time not to be true? 

A Mr* Williams, in the course of my giving 

up information, you know, on so many occasions, 

you have to rely upon sources* That information will 

have to be double checked for veracity, reliability, 

or whatever, you know, so I cannot recall, you know, 

the times when information that has been received to 

me by a source and relayed to my case officers, you 

know, would turn out to be, you know, untruthful, 

deceptive, or whatever, 

Q That wasn't my question, Mr. Morales. 

A That is the way I understood it, 

Q Well, let me rephrase it for you, than. 

Has there ever been a time when you have 

given information, or for want of a better term, 

advices, suggestions, to any law enforcement agent 

or anybody else in any way connected with law 

enforcement such, for example, as a prosecutor when, 

at the time you knew that either what you were saying 

was -nnot- t rue- ,  oy y o u  knew that if the person relied 
- - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - -  - - - - - - - -  - - - - - -  

upon your advice~, it would work in some way to their 

disadvantage? Bas that ever been the case? 

A I do not recall ever that having been the 

case to the best of my recollection. 

Q Let's talk for a moment about the matter o: 



one Rolando Otero .  Do you know t h e  f e l l o w ?  -. . 

A O f  cou r se  I know t h e  f e l l ow.  

Q Whom do you know him t o  be? 

A 2506 Brigade member, pe r sona l  f r i e n d  of  

mine, undercover a g e n t  f o r  me, mull  i n  a f o r e i g n  

i n t e l l i g e n c e  e e r v i c e .  

Q Which one? 

A D.I.N.A., Chi lean  D. I .N .A . ,  as a Chi lean  

I n t e l l i g e n c e  o f f i c e r .  

He i n f i l t r a t e d  t h a t  o r g a n i z a t i o n  under 

t h e  orders of  my s u p e r i o r s  i n  DISIP. 

0 You a l s o  know him t o  be somebody who was 

accused and fo rma l ly  charged,  a t  one p o i n t ,  h e r e  i n  

t h e  Uni ted  States  f o r  s e v e r a l  o f f e n s e s  i n v o l v i n g  t h e  

uoe,  pos ses s ion ,  o r  p l a c i n g  of e x p l o s i v e s  o r  explosive 

d e v i c e s ;  i s n ' t  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A That i s  cor rec t . .  

Q And t h e r e  came a t i m e  a t  which you w e r e  

asked t o  p rov ide  S t a t e  p r o s e c u t o r s  w i t h  i n fo rma t ion  

t h a t  cou ld  be used i n  o r d e r  t o  be able s u c c e s s f u l l y  
- - - - - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -  
- - - - - - - - - - - - 

t o  p r o s e c u t e  M r .  Otero;  i s n ' t  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I t  was n o t  t h e  S t a t e .  

Q Was t h e r e  a t i m e  when you were asked by 

any p r o s e c u t o r i a l  agency o r  any p rosecu t ing  a t t o r n e y  

t o  f u r n i s h  i n fo rma t ion  a g a i n s t  M r .  O te ro  which cou ld  



be used for the purpose of prosecuting him 

successfully? 

A It was not any State Attorneys-or anything 

like that. It was a law enforcement agency, govern- 

ment law enforcement agency. 

0 Didn't there come a time, Mr. Morales, 

when formal, criminal charges were filed against 

Mr. Otero by this same State Attorney's Office hers 

in Dade County? 

A Oh, yes. 

Q And havenlt you had communication with 

law enforcement agenta and/or prosecutors specifically 

for the purpose of assisting in Mr. Otero's prosecutic 

A I was never served with a subpoena. 

Q I didn't ask you that. 

A I'm answering you just to make it short. 

was never served a subpoena to testify against 

Mr. Otero during Mr. Otero's trial by the State of 

Florida. 

Q I haven't asked you about being served 

with subpoenas, Mr. Morales. 

I asked you whether there was ever a time 

when you had any communication with any law enforceme1 

agent and/or prosecutor for the purpose of assisting 

or giving the appearance of assisting in Mr. Oterols 



p r o s e c u t i o n ?  Yes o r  no? 

A B a s i c a l l y ,  y e s .  

Q And t h e n ,  t h e r e  came a time when M r .  O t s ro  

h i m s e l f ,  became a f u g i t i v e  from t h e  cha rges  t h a t  had 

been f i l e d  a g a i n s t  him; isn't t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A H e  became -- he was o u t  of  t h e  coun t ry  

b e f o r e  the cha rges  were f i l e d  f o r  your own i n f o r m a t i o  

i n  case t h a t  you d o n ' t  have a t r a c k  r eco rd  of  it. 

Q Mr, Marales, d i d  there come a t i m e  when 

m r ,  O te ro  became a f u g i t i v e  from the c h a r g e s  t h a t  

have been f i l e d  a g a i n s t  him? 

A Yes, 

Q Pardon me? 

A Y e 8  

Q Now, what p a r t  d i d  you have, M r .  Morales,  

i n  M r ,  O t e r o ' s  d e p a r t u r e  from t h e  South F l o r i d a  area 

a t  a t i m e  when formal  charges  were pending a g a i n s t  

him? 

A There were no formal  cha rges  pending 

against M r .  O te ro  when h e  depa r t ed  the United S t a t e s  

o f  America, 

Q What part d i d  you p l a y  in t h e  d e p a r t u r e  

from t h e  United States a t  o r  around t h e  t i m e  when 

formal  cha rges  were pending a g a i n s t  him? 

A There were no pending cha rges  a g a i n s t  



Mr. Otero when he departed the United States of 

America. 

Q Here's my question, Mr. Morales, what part 

did you play in Mr, Otero's departure from the United 

States at or in the vicinity of the time when there 

were formal charges pending against him? 

A There were no charges pending at or in 

the vicinity of Mr. Rolando Otero at the time of his 

departure, 

MS. COHAN: Subsequently, there were. 

After he was convicted, he became a fugitive, 

THE WITNESS: NO, Rina, 

MS, COHANt That was my underatanding. 

BY MR, WILLIAMSt 

Q Do you understand the question? 

A I understand the question perfectly. 

The one who h a s  the wrong information is 

you. 

Q One more time. 

A One more time. Ten more times, 

Q Did you play any part in Mr. Otero's 

departure from the United States at a time when he 

subsequently became a fugitive? 

A At the time that Mr, Otero departed from 

the United States of America, I was already in 



Caracus ,  Venezuela,  

Q Here's my q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  Morales: Did you 

p l a y  a p a r t  i n  Mr. O t e r o ' s  d e p a r t u r e  from t h e  United 

S t a t e s ?  Yes o r  no? 

A How can  I dominate a p a r t ?  I wasn ' t  he r e .  

Q Is t h a t  a no? 

A T h a t ' s  a no, 

Q A l l  r i g h t ,  

A I gave him no t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  t o  t h e  

a i r p o r t ,  Nothing. I d o n ' t  know what happened, I 

wasn ' t  h e r e ,  

O-,ro o r  anybody else concern ing  -., . M r .  O t e ro ' e  

d e p a r t u r e  from t h e  Uni ted  S t a t e s ?  --- -- - -- - - . ...-- , .  . 

A Y e s ,  

Q With whom? 

A With t h e  F , B , I .  
-.m v.<.-. . . 

Q That  was a f t e r  M r .  O te ro  d e p a r t e d ?  

A That was b e f o r e  M r .  O te ro  depa r t ed .  

Q What was your c o n v e r s a t i o n  w i th  t h e  F . B . 1 .  

p r i o r  t o  h i s  d e p a r t u r e ?  

A I adv i sed  t h e  F,B.I, t h a t  t h e  Condor 

w a s  abou t  t o  f l y .  

Q T h e  Condor, meaning M r .  O te ro?  

A That  i s  c o r r e c t ,  



Q You knew M r .  O te ro  was on t h e  verge  of 

leavi 'ng a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  h e  l e f t ?  

A Everybody knew t h a t ,  I t-  w a s  no secret, 

Q Had you had any c o n v e r s a t i o n  wi th  

Mr. Otero,hi rnsel f ,  o r  anybody on h i s  beha l f  concerning 

h i s  d e p a r t u r e  f o r  t h e  purpose  of l end ing  him any 

a s s i s t a n c e  e i t h e r  d i r e c t l y  o r  i n d i r e c t l y  i n  h i s  

d e p a r t u r e ?  

A Who, me? 

Q Yes, 

A Y e s ,  

Q With whom? 

A Mr. Otero ,  h imae l f ,  

Q P r i o r  t o  h i s  departure? 

A P r i o r  t o  t h e  d e p a r t u r e .  

Q And t h a t  was a t  a t i m e  when you were 

regarded  as a p o t e n t i a l  w i t n e s s  a g a i n s t  Mr. Otero  

i n  connec t ion  wi th  v a r i o u s  charges  r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e  

p l a c e s  of d e s t r u c t i o n  o r  e x p l o s i v e  d e v i c e s ;  i s n ' t  

t h a t  true? 
- - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - 

A That is i n c o l l e c t .  

Q What p o i n t  i n  t i m e  was t h a t ,  M r ,  Morale8 -- 
a f t e r  t h e  t r i a l  had a l r e a d y  t aken  place? 

A No, a i r .  You a r e  complete ly  i n c o r r e c t .  

i n  day and time, 



8 Suppose you straighten us out. Tell us 

the sequence of events. 

A You asked the questions, and I give you the 

answers. 

Q Describe to me the sequence of events 

concerning -- 
A Concerning what? 

Q Concerning your association with Rolando 

Otero and your giving information about or concerning 

him to any law enforcement agenctes? 

A I adviaed the FeB.Ie that the  Condor was 
-_...l --. - # "  -1 -1 - 

about , .  to . fly out because he request money to buy an 

airline ticket for d e s t i n a t i o n  for Dominican 

Q When was t h a t  relative to t h e  point in 

time that you had furnished information to some 

governmental agency concerning his activities with 

regard to explosive devices? 

A Very few. 

Q When, in point in time, was it t h a t  you 

A That he was going to leave? 

Q Yes, relative to the time that you had 

given information t o  some governmental agency about 

it? 



A You've g o t  it wrong complete ly .  You are 

way o u t  i n  l e f t  f i e l d  abou t  t h e  whole i s s u e .  Way o u t  

i n  left f i e l d .  

You'd b e t t e r  get  better sources. 

Q T e l l  m e  what I have wrong, M r .  Morales. 

A Nothing. 

H e  - .  asked - .  m e  f o r  money f o r  an  a i r l i n e  

t l c k e t .  I advised t h e  F m B . 1 .  t h a t  t h e  Condor was -- *.....-I-_ -.- ^ % ^  .I -_-, .*_ " . d  ? - . - 

abou t  t o  f l y  ..-- r-+ out, . -. t h a t  he  had asked m e  f o r  money, 

and that I was go ing  t o  g i v e  him t h e  money period. 

Then I took a plane down t o  Caracua, 

and I don't know what happened a f t e r w a r d s  down here 

i n  Miami. 

Q Had you g iven  Mr. Otero money? 

A Yes, I d i d  g i v e  him t h e  m o  e 

a i r l i n e  t i c k e t .  ----- ,. 

Q Was t h a t  b e f o r e  o r  a f t e r  cha rges  had been 

f i l e d  a g a i n s t  him? 

A O h ,  long  be fo re .  

Q Was it  before or a f t e r  you had g iven  o t h e r  . ., "..* * 

a c t i v i t i e s  w i th  e x p l o s i v e  d e v i c e s ?  ..- - ., .I r _ , _ 
A Just abou t  t h e  aame t i m e ,  w e *  myself. 

.-v.-.-,,- . , a , , 

Q So,  a t  about  t h e  same t i m e  you informed 

a g a i n s t  M r .  Otero  and -- 



A I was not informing against Mr. Otero, 

Q You gave information about him; didn't you 

A I was giving information. 

Q Was the information that was consistent 

with his innocence or was it information that tended 

to indicate his guilt of some criminal activity? 

A At the time, it was an information that 

was being developed. It was not a positive informati 

It was not hardcore information. 

rt was an information that was being 

developed. It was an information that was being 

worked upon. 

Q Information that tended to implicate him i 

the commission of a crime; is that correct? 

A Information that was intended to 

corroborate whatever information was in the hands of 

the Federal Bureau of Investigations at thet f m e .  

Q Information indicating his involvement in 

the commission of a crime, Mr. Morales? 

A Indication indicating that he might be a 

8iWpecC In-t=he-mmnkmfcm 0% - them aLlege& crimes - - - 

that you are mentioning, 

Q SO, clearly, then, the information that yo 

were giving to law enforcement was for the purpose of 

assisting law enforcement in its investigation 



of Mr, Otero;  c o r r e c t ?  

A I t  was r eques t ed  from me. 

Q Is t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A It  was r eques t ed  from me, 

Q Give m e  a yes  o r  no, p l e a s e ,  s i r ?  

A N o t  i n  t h e  way t h a t  you a r e  p u t t i n g  

t h e  words i n  m y  mouth. That  i s  not t h e  way it 

developed.  You d o n ' t  have t h e  s l i g h t e s t  sense of what 

i n fo rma t ion  is  t o  s t a r t  w i th ,  

Q The q u e s t i o n  is ,  Mr, Morales,  whether  t h e  

i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  you had f u r n i s h e d  t o  whatever law 

enforcement agency it was, was f o r  the purpose  of 

a i d i n g  t h a t  law enforcement agency i n  deve lop ing  

a p r o s e c u t i o n  a g a i n s t  M r .  Otero?  I f  i t ' s  y e s ,  say 

yea, I f  i t ' s  no, say no. 

A W a i t ,  w a i t ,  w a i t ,  w a i t ,  w a i t ,  w i th  t h a t  yes 

and no c r a p ,  Mr, W i l l i a m ,  

Okay, L e t  m e  e x p l a i n  it t o  you. 

I was on v a c a t i o n  down h e r e  i n  Miami from 

Caracas ,  Venezuela,  and as u s u a l ,  you know, I c a l l  

up everybody t h a t  I knew down h e r e  i n  Miami j u s t  t o  

a d v i s e  them t h a t  I was i n  town f o r  v a c a t i o n s ;  r i g h t ?  

Now, t h e  F . B , I ,  asked me, "What about, 

Ricardo,  i f  you send t h e  word o u t  to a l l  your 

s o u r c e s ,  because w e  want t o  v e r i f y  i n fo rma t ion  that 



w e  have received t h a t  M r .  Rolando Otero might be t h e  

suspect, o r  whatever t hey  want t o  c a l l  it; okayn 

and whatever happened here a t  t h e  time t h a t  I was 

n o t  even here, and 1 s e n t  o u t  word t o  my sources-  - .  . ,  . . .? 

out - t h e r e , - - t h a t  t h e y  po in t ed  o u t  t o  m e  t h a t  Otero  

was l i k e l y  t h e  s u s p e c t  i n  t hose  bombings, which I 
._- C A * - . .  I a 

r e l a y e d  .. . back t o  t h e  F O B  .I. 

Q It was a f t e r  t h a t  t h a t  M r .  O te ro  came t o  

you and a s k e d  for help g e t t i n g  o u t  of t h e  count ry ;  

is  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A What? 

Q I s a i d ,  it was a f t e r  t h a t  M r .  O te ro  came 

t o  you and asked you f o r  help g e t t i n g  o u t  of  t h e  

count ry ;  is  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Z c a n ' t  h e a r  you. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Read t h e  q u e s t i o n  back t o  

him, Ma. Wax. 

(Whereupon, t h e  q u e s t i o n  r e f e r e d  t o  was 

r e a d  i n t o  t h e  r eco rd  by t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r . )  

THE WITNESS: M r .  Otero was ask ing  f o r  

t h a t k i n d  o f  hdp From -half f he  town,-and nobody 

was h e l p i n g  him. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

Q Does t h a t  i nc lude  you, M r .  Morales? 

A That i n c l u d e s  me. 



Q And you gave him h e l p  g e t t i n g  o u t  of  t h e  

count ry ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I gave him what he asked for me, t h a t  it wi 

money t o  buy an a i r l i n e  t i c k e t .  

0 A f t e r  M r .  Otero  l e f t  t h e  coun t ry ,  t h e n ,  

as I unders tand it, formal charges  were f i l e d  a g a i n s t  

him; is  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A f have no knowledge. I hope so, I mean, 

I b e l i e v e  so .  

Q Weren't you then  con tac t ed  by people i n  

law enforcement a sk ing  f o r  your a s s i s t a n c e  and 

proaur ing  M r .  O te ro 'e  r e t u r n ?  

A Nope. 

Q Did you have c o n t a c t  w i th  M r .  Otero  then  

some p l a c e  on t h e  South American c o n t i n e n t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q A s  a r e s u l t  o f  your c o n t a c t s  w i t h  

M r .  Otero, he cane, once aga in ,  t o  be i n  t h e  coun t ry  

of Chile; d i d n ' t  h e ?  

- - - A - f I d T  - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - - 

Q f s a i d ,  as a r e s u l t  of your c o n t a c t s  w i th  

M r .  O te ro ,  d i d n ' t  he t h e n  come t o  be i n  t h e  Country 

of C h i l e  once again? 

A As a r e s u l t  o f  Mr. Otero 'a  c o n t a c t s  

w i t h  t h e  DISIP. 



t 

Q You, a t  t h e  t i m e ,  were i n  t h e  employ of  

DISIP; weren ' t  you, s i r ?  

A A t  t h e  t i m e ,  I was i n  t h e  employ of  t h e  

Fore ign  M i n i s t r y  and of  DISIP, 

Q Did - .. ..-".. you, , *.. - o r  d i d  , you . n o t  . . .  have _ .  any th ing  * _ _  % . t o  - -..-- 

do w i t h  O t e r o ' s  going t o  Ch i l e?  

A My government, t h e  Venezuelan . , government, 

a t  t h e  t i m e ,  was t h e  one who had t o  do w i th  him, 

Q Did you have any th ing  t o  do  w i t h  i t ,  your- 

a e l f ,  Mr, Morale83 

A I was his h a n d l e r ,  

Q T h a t ' s  a yes ;  i s n ' t  it, s i r ?  

A Y e s ,  

Q And a f t e r  you had s e n t  him o f f  t o  C h i l e ,  

d i d n ' t  you t h e n  have some p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  h i s  

e v e n t u a l l y  be ing  t a k e n  i n t o  cus tody  down t h e r e ?  

A No, sir, 

Q Did you have any part i n  h i s  e v e n t u a l l y  

be ing  r e t u r n e d  t o  t h e  United S t a t e s ?  

A No, s i r .  

Q None, whatsoever? 

A None, whatsoever.  

Q Where i s  he  today ;  do you know? 

A Beats m e ,  

Q You have no idea a t  a l l  where he  i s ?  



A No, sir ,  

Q Do you know whether h e  is  i n  cus tody  

i n  t h e  United S t a t e s ?  

A Huh? 

Q Do you know whether he ia i n  custody i n  the 

United S t a t e s ?  

A I d o n ' t  know t h a t ,  

Q Do you have any knowledge, whatsoever ,  

concerning h i s  whereabouts? 

A I read i n  t h e  papers t h a t  he i s  a f u g i t i v e .  

Q How many d i f f e r e n t  t i m e s  were you contac ted  

between t he  time you f i r s t  had involvement w i t h  

M r .  Otero and the time when he l a s t  became a f u g i t i v e 7  

How many times were you c o n t a c t e d  by anybody 

connected wi th  l a w  enforcement o r  w i t h  government i n  

a n  a t t e m p t  t o  e i t h e r  take Mr, Otero  i n t o  cus tody  or 

de te rmine  his whereabouts? 

A You mean, now, t h a t  e i t h e r  a f u g i t i v e  o r  

t h e  o t h e r  t ime?  

Q T h e  l a s t  time when he was on t h e  verge  of  

be_ inqcharged  - - - - - - - -  and he  was a s k i n g  your h e l p  i n  g e t t i n g  
- - - - - - -  - - - - - -  - - - - - -  - - - - -  

o u t  of  t h e  country? How many t i m e s  were you i n  touch  

w i t h  l a w  enforcement i n  t h e i r  e f f o r t s  t o  f i n d  o u t  w h e ~  

he i s ,  and p o s s i b l y ,  t o  g e t  him back? 

A I was never  con tac t ed  wi th  t h e  purpose 



of  hav ing  M r .  O t e ro  r e t u r n e d  t o  t h e  United S t a t e s .  

Q Were you ever c o n t a c t e d  f o r  t h e  purpose  

o f  f i n d i n g  o u t  where he  was? 

A That  was a m a t t e r  o f  d i s c l o s u r e  i n  t h e  

press. Everybody knew he was being fo l lowed  by 

newspapers,  you know, d u r i n g  a l l  h i s  t r i a l s .  

I s t i l l  remember t h a t ,  on t h e  f r o n t  page 

o f  t h e  M i a m i  Hera ld ,  you know, t h e y  r a n  a n  a r t i c l e  

s a y i n g ,  "The f l i g h t  of  t h e  C o n d ~ r , ~  and t h e n ,  a map 

of t h e  Western Hemisphere showing M r .  O t e r o ' s  f l i g h t  

from Miami t o  t h e  Dominican Republ ic ,  from t h e  

Dominican Republ ic  t o  Caraaas, Venezuela,  and from 

Caracas, Venezuela,  to San t i ago ,  C h i l e .  I t  was on 

t h e  f r o n t  page of t h e  papers .  

Q Did anybody connected w i t h  law enforcement  

a t  any l e v e l ,  e v e r  ask you f o r  a s s i s t a n c e  i n  determin-  

ing O t e r o ' s  whereabouts? 

A Nope. 

0 While he  was a f u g i t i v e ?  

A Nope. 

- - - - - - - - Everybody - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  knew w h e r e  he was, and what h e  
- - - - -  - - - - 

waa do ing  among l a w  enforcement a g e n c i e s ,  coun te r -  

i n t e l l i g e n c e  agenc i e s .  

Q L e t  m e  make s u r e  t h a t  I have an  answer 

clear i n  h e r e ,  s o  t h e r e  is  no q u e s t i o n  about t h a t .  



Is it y.our testimony that, at no time 

between Mr. Oterols last known departure from ~ i a m i  

in which you assisted in his having become a fugitive 

following his arrival in Santiago, Chile, that 

anybody connected with law enforcement ever asked you 

for assistance in determining his whereabouts; ia 

that what you are saying? 

A To start with, donlt put words in my mouth 

Q Is that what you are saying? 

A No, no, Don't put words in my mouth, 

Q If the answer is no -- 
A Don't put words in my mouth. 

The only assistance I gave him was money 

to buy an airline ticket, which I never knew it was 

intended to be used by them. 

Later on, about his whereabouts, I had 

the government on top of me, and whatever inquiries 

were made about Mr, Oterols whereabouts were put up 

to my immediate superiors in'the Foreign Ministry or 

questions. I was just receiving orders from them, 

MR. WILLIAMS: All right. I'm going to 

recess the deposition long enough to go down before 

Judge Kogan, and see if we can't get the matter of 



t h e s e  e i t h e r  d e c e p t i v e  o r  i n a p p r o p r i a t e  answers on 

Mr.Moralesl p a r t  s t r a i g h t e n e d  out. 

It was cute the f i r s t  couple  of days .  

I t  has l ong  s i n c e  ceased t o  be c u t e .  

W e ' l l  j u s t  s i t  t h e r e  and have t h e  r e p o r t e r  

r e a d  s e v e r a l  of  Mr. Morales '  answers back t o  t h e  

Cour t ,  because  I'm s u r e  t h e  Judge would l i k e  

M t o  Morales t o  be t o l d  t h a t  t h e  t i m e  for h i s  

v e r s i o n  of  t h e  Gong Show i s  ove r  w i t h ,  and he can now 

answer q u e s t i o n s  a s  t h e y  are p u t  t o  him. 

I a m  n o t  going to waste m y  t i m e  w i th  t h i s  

nonsense. 

M S .  COHAN: I t  i s  my unders tand ing  t h a t  is 

what Mr. Morales i s  doing.  

MR. WILLIAMS2 W e l l ,  t h e n ,  w e  w i l l  j u s t  

have t o  r e l y  upon t h e  s t a t e  of  t h e  r e c o r d ,  

M S .  COHAN: That  i s  accurate. 

OFFICER DXAZ: A r e  we going  downs ta i r s ?  

MR. WILLIAMS8 Yes. 

MS. COHAM: Apparently.  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

(Off t h e  r eco rd ,  ) 

(Whereupon, t h e  fo l lowing  proceed ings  

were had b e f o r e  t h e  Honorable Gerald  Kogan i n  

chamberm) 

M S .  COHAN: Obviously,  w e  have run  i n t o  a 



personality problem between Mr. Morales and Mr. 

Williams, where Mr. Williams asks l ead ing  questions, 

which M r .  Morales does not feel he can answer yes or 

no. 

Mr. Williams and Mr. Morales don't get 

along. Mr. ~illiams has been calling Mr. Morales 

"Monkey: and inviting him to leave if he does not 

like it. 

It has become a three-ring circus. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Starring the Monkey. 

We are down here on my Motion, I think, 

Judge, and I really don't know what technically to 

call it. 

THE COURT: Well, do you have any questionf 

that Mr. Morales was asked that he didn't answer? 

MS. COHANt NO. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes, Judge, we do. We have 

a series of questions, and what finally caused me 

to spare being able to conduct an orderly deposition, 

and instead, electing to come down here and get your 

help, is that the fellow who obvious ly  thinks that he 

is the star of some show and here to posture and 

entertain and perform, generally declines to answer 

a question that is put to him, but rather, wanders 

off on what frequently are f a i r l y  extensive and alway: 



rambl ing  semi-coherent  d i a l o g u e s  t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t ,  

on  a c o u p l e . o f  o c c a s i o n s ,  when I have  t r i e d  t o  c u t  hi1 

off and b r i n g  him back t o  t h e  q u e a t i o n ,  t h i n g s  have  

g o t t e n  a l i t t l e  bit e x p l o s i v e .  

THE COURT: W e l l ,  f o r  example? 

MR. WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  I w i l l  ask t h e  c o u r t  

r e p o r t e r  t o  read back a coup l e  of  t h i n g s ,  b u t  it 

i s  r e a l l y  a p a t t e r n  t h a t  has been t a k i n g  p l a c e  o v e r  

t h e  past ooup l e  of days  now; meaning, t oday  and l a s t  

Thursday,  and t o  a lesser e x t e n t ,  on  Wednesday, and 

what I r e a l l y  wan t ,  Judge ,  i s  -- I d o n f t  know i f  t h e  

p r o s e c u t o r  can c o n t r o l  t h e  f e l l o w  o r  no t .  

So f a r ,  she seems t o  be a b l e  t o  a t  h e r  

w i l l ,  b u t  I ' d  l i k e  t h e  man t o l d ,  as I have t o l d  him 

c o n s t a n t l y  t h roughou t  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t h e  d a p o e i t i o n ,  

t h a t  i f  I ask a q u e s t i o n  t h a t  c an  be answered w i t h  a 

ye s  o r  no,  t h a t  he. do  it t h a t  way, and t h e n ,  i f  h i s  

answer needs  a n  e x p l a n a t i o n ,  t o  proceed t o  e x p l a i n  

it. I have t o l d  him t h a t .  

i n c e s s a n t l y ,  and I ' v e  p u t  t o  him q u e e t i o n s  t h a t  a r e  

s u s c e p t i b l e  o f ,  and as a matter o f  f a c t ,  r e q u i r e  

y e s  o r  no answers  w i t h ,  you know, t h e  -- 
THE COURT: X a p p r e c i a t e  what t h e  problem 



i s ,  b u t  obviously,.I canno t  be p r e s e n t  d u r i n g  t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  and u n f o r t u n a t e l y ,  during t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ,  

you are going  t o  have t o  p u t  up w i t h  some of i t  o r  

p u t  up w i t h  a g r e a t  d e a l  o f  i t*  

MR. WILLIAMS: I ' v e  been p u t t i n g  up w i t h  a 

l o t  of it. 

THE COURT: You may have t o .  

I ' m  n o t  go ing  t o  have you come down on 

every s i n g l e  q u e s t i o n .  

MR. WILLIAMS: W e  h a v e n t t  done t h a t ,  b u t  

i t ' s  g o t t e n  t o  t h e  s p o t  now where t h e  man r e a l l y ,  

e i t h e r  aa an e x e r c i s e  i n  whimsy o r  s e l f - p r o t e c t i o n  

or a combinat ion  o f  t h o s e  t h i n g s ,  t h i n k s  t h a t  it i s  

c u t e  t o  p l a y  word games, and when one u n d e r t a k e s  t o  

remind that t h a t  i s n ' t  his f u n c t i o n ,  t h e n ,  drawing 

wha tever  occu r r ed  -- 
TRE COURT: Your example of a word game? 

MR. WILLIAMS: I asked h i m  a t  one p o i n t  -- 
w e l l ,  l e t  m e  just ask t h e  r e p o r t e r  read some passages 

*-acK*- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - -  

THE COURT: Rather  t h a n  t h a t ,  why d o n ' t  

you j u s t  t e l l  me? 

MS. COHAN: Rather  than t h a t ,  let me 

i n d i c a t e  t o  the Cour t ,  M r .  Morales has been 

i n s t r u c t e d  t h a t  h e  may answer any q u e s t i o n  y e s ,  no, 



o r  I d o n ' t  know, and i f  his answer r e q u i r e s  a n  

e x p l a n a t i o n ,  t h e n  he w i l l  be pe rmi t t ed  t o  give it. 

However, M r .  Wil l iams,  be ing  t h e  way he is, 

M r .  Morales,  being t h e  way he i s ,  n e i t h e r  of them, 

it seems, can  a l l ow t h e  o t h e r  one t o  f i n i s h  t h e i r  

r e s p e c t i v e  q u e s t i o n  o r  answer, 

MR. WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  t h a t  is n o t  q u i t e  

t h e  c a s e ,  your Honor, 

I have never  i n t e r r u p t e d  t h e  w i t n e s s  i n  

t h e  uourse of  an  answer, 

THE COURT: Here's what I am going t o  do,  

I a m  going t o  b r i n g  t h e  w i t n e s s  i n ,  and t e l l  t h e  witnc 

he f a  f i r s t  t o  answer t h a t  q u e s t i o n  yea o r  no, o r  

I d o n ' t  know i f  he d o e s n ' t  know, b u t  f i r s t ,  y e s  o r  

no, and t h e n ,  i f  he  has t o  g i v e  an e x p l a n a t i o n ,  he car 

g i v e  an  e x p l a n a t i o n ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: That  i s  a l l  I a m  ask ing .  

THE COURT: Now, i n  t h e  e v e n t  it should  

develop somewhere a long  t h e  l i n e  t h a t  he should  g e t  

t o  be rambl ing,  and sometimes, w e  have rambling 

w i t n e s s e s ,  and it j u s t  becomes imposs ib le  t o  c o n t r o l  

t h e  s i t u a t i o n ,  t h e n ,  b r i n g  it down, b u t  I want t o  

h e a r  what t h e  rambl ings  a r e ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  Judge,  I a m  happy t o  

have t h e  r e p o r t e r  r e a d  s e v e r a l  examples now, 



THE COURT: I don't want it. 

If it's going to -happen in the future 

a f t e r  I instruct him, we will go from there, and then, 

we will decide what I am going to do, 

Secondly, are you calling him Monkey? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Not on deposition, 

When we walked in the door on deposition, 

I was callinghimMr. Morales or Monkey or sir at his 

invitation, When he walked in the door, I made some 

comment about the fact that the monkeys came, 

MS. COHANt And his keepers. 

THE COURT: Here's what I recommend. 

Don't call him Monkey, because apparently, it is 

antagonizing the individual, 

MR. WILLIAMS: Judge, 

does hurt. 

TRE COURT: Call him 

Mr. Morales. 

sometimes the truth 

Mr. Witness or 

MS. COHAN: Or Ricardo or Rickyo 

THE -CO_URTg _Wh_atever it-ia he- wants to 

be called. 

Don't call him Monkey. Don't make any 

comments about the Monkey, because it's not going to 

help any of us get this depoeition finished. 

MS. COHAN: 1 will also indicate that 



D e t e c t i v e  Diaz and Puig  a re  n o t  h i s  companions,  body- 

g u a r d s ,  o r  any o t h e r  thing of t h a t  n a t u r e ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: I n  that case, what t h e  h e l l  

a r e  they do ing  here? 

MS. COHAN: M r .  Morales  is t h e i r  sou rce .  

THE COURT: I t ' s  unnecessa ry .  

MR. WILLIAMS: I f  t h e y ' r e  n o t  h i s  body- 

g u a r d s ,  t h e n ,  c an  w e  get them o u t  o f  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ?  

THE COURT: Obvious ly ,  t h e y  are t h e r e  t o  

p r o t e c t  M r .  Mora les ,  

In any e v e n t ,  l e t ' s  d o  t h i s .  Don't  even 

refer t o  M r .  D i a z  o r  whoever else i s  with him. 

MS. COBAN t Puig  . 
THE COURT: M r .  Puig .  

Don ' t  refer to them. C a l l  him M r .  Moraler 

M r .  Witness .  Don ' t  c a l l  him Monkey. Don't  r e f e r  to 

his bodyguards ,  or  whatever else,  and l e t ' s  j u s t  

p roceed  w i t h  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n .  

L e t ' s  b r i n g  i n  M r .  Morales .  

(Whereupon, O f f i c e r  P u i g ,  o f f i c e r  Diaz ,  
- - - - -  - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - 

and t h e  w i t n e s s  a n t e r e a c h a m b e r s . ) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

THE COURT% A l l  r i g h t ,  M r .  Morales .  

L i s t e n ,  Tqhenever t h e  q u e s t i o n s  a ro  aaked of you, 

t h e y  c a l l  f o r  a n  answer f i r s t ,  yes o r  no o r  i f  you 

d o n ' t  know, you say I d o n ' t  know, 



If you have to explain, or you want to 

explain your an8wer;you can e x p l a i n  the answer, but  

first, answer it yes or no; all r i g h t ,  o r  I don't 

know, if you don't know, 

Now, only answer t h e  question that is 

being  asked of you, and keep your answers limited to 

the question that is being asked. In other words, 

if you are asked now, "What happened when you m e t  with 

Sam Smith on such and such a day," you just answer, 

"This is what happened when I met with Sam Smith on 

such and such a day." 

Don't tell them what happened with Sam 

Smith on aome other day; okay? Do I make myself 

clear? 

THE WfTNESSt Yes, youl Honor. 

I want to point it out to you that I had 

a chain of command throughout my whole life, and I 

was r e c e i v i n g  orders and I carried those orders, 

so Mr. Williams is trying to put me i n  a position 

where I was the one making the decision, which I 

didn't, 

THE COURT: Well, obviously, you are 

referring to some line of questioning that I am 

unaware of, 

MS. COHAN: A specific line of questioning 



before w e  came down. 

THE COURT% Whatever it is, the important 

thing is that you answer the question that is being 

asked, and that is it. 

If you feel that it needs an explanation, 

explain it, but don't, you know, make long, long 

explanations about matters that really don't relate 

to that particular question at that time. 

When you are finished with Mr. Williams' 

questions, then, Ms. Cohan will have a chance to ask 

you questions to clear up anything that she feels 

may need further.explanation, so it's not like nobody 
.J 

is going to ask you anything, 

If Ms. Cohan feels it is appropriate, 

then, she will ask you questions later on; all right? 

THE WITNESSI I will do my beat. 

THE COURT: Okay, because I want to move 

this along. I want to finish this as soon as we can, 

THE WITNESS: So do I, sir. 

THE COURT: All right, 

- - - - -  - - - - T e t  me s a y  t h k -  T h i s  AS cIi3f icuLt far  - - - 

everybody. It is difficult for you, it is difficult 

for Mr. Williams, Ms. Cohan -- everybody, and all you 
do is just answer a question, and let's stay away 

Prom personalities, everybody, and we'll all get along 



f i n e  t h a t  way. 

Okay. Go u p s t a i r s  and f i n i s h .  

MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you,  Judge.  

(Whereupon, a s h o r t  r e c e s s  was t a k e n  a f t e r  

which t h e  f o l l o w i n g  p roceed ings  were had i n  t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n : )  

MR. WILLIAMS: Before  w e  g e t  back to t h e  

l i n e  of  q u e s t i o n i n g  t h a t  w e  have been t r e a t i n g ,  

Ms. Cohan, i n  our  l i t t l e  d i a l o g u e  w i t h  t h e  Cour t  be fo r  

t h e  w i t n e s s  was brough t  i n t o  t h e  room, you made it a 

p o i n t  i n  t e l l i n g  t h e  Cour t  t h a t  M r .  Diaz and M r .  P u i g  

were n o t  M r .  Morales' bodyguards.  

MS. COHAN: That  is  c o r r e c t .  

MR. WILLIAMS: What i s  t h e  purpose  of t h e i r  

presence? 

M S .  COHAN: S i r ,  I am n o t  b e i n g  deposed. 

If you would like t o  g e t  on w i t h  t h e  q u e s t i o n i n g  of 

M r .  Mora les ,  you may do s o .  

MR. WILLIAMS: A l l  r i g h t .  

I f  you f e e l  t h a t  Mr- Puig  and M r .  Diaz have 
- - - - - - - - - - - 

t o  be h e r e  f o r  any p o l i c e  p u r p o s e t l i a t  per t a i n a  t o  - - 

M r .  Moralear  we l l -be ing ,  t h e n  l e t  them s i t  o u t s i d e  

t h e  doo r s .  

I don't want them p r e s e n t  f o r  any more 

o f  the d e p o s i t i o n -  There i s  no r e a s o n  f o r  t h e i r  bein2 



h e r e .  

M S .  COHAN: The Court  has  a l r e a d y  i n d i c a t e d  

t h e y  may be p r e s e n t .  

If you want t o  go down on a n o t h e r  c e r t i f i e d  

q u e s t i o n ,  w e  may do ao.  

They are also h e r s  as much f o r  my well-beiz 

as M r .  Morales I .  

MR. WXLLIAMS: Do you ha rbo r  any f e a r  of 

m e  a t  t h i s  t ime? 

M S .  COHAN: M r .  Wi l l iams,  M r .  Diaz and 

M r .  Pu ig  a r e  p e r m i t t e d  t o  be h e r e  by t h e  Cour t ,  and 

t h e y  w i l l  c o n t i n u e  t o  be he re .  

MR. WILLIAMSa W e l l ,  Rina,  they have no mor 

f u n c t i o n  t o  s e r v e  s i t t i n g  I n s i d e  t h e s e  doorways t h a n  

t h e y  do immediately o u t s i d e  t h e  doorways to your  

o f f i c e .  

M S .  COHAN: Does t h e i r  p r e sence  b o t h e r  

you f o r  some r ea son?  

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes, 

MS. COHANr Do t h e y  i n t i m i d a t e  you? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Not a b i t ,  

M S .  COHAN: Then, why does it b o t h e r  you? 

MR. WILLIAMSr Because t h e y  a r e  bo th  

w i t n e s s e s  i n  t h e  case,  and I a m  about to get i n t o  

some s e n s i t i v e  iasues with which one is about to be 



i n t e r r o g a t e d ,  and i n  t h e  same way I want a l l  t h e  

o t h e r  w i tnes se s  s eques t e r ed  one from t h e  o t h e r ,  I 

want t h e s e  w i t n e s s e s  s eques t e r ed  one from t h e  o t h e r s .  

MS. COHAN: I n  terms of  M r .  Puig ,  I can - 

unders tand  your fears. However, M r .  Morales '  sta te -  

ment is going to be a v a i l a b l e  to him, i n  any even t .  

MR. WILLIAMSt Fine. 

1 am now s p e c i f i c a l l y  r e q u e s t i n g  t h a t  you 

have M r .  Diaa s i t  on t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  o f  t h a t  door 

( i n d i c a t i n g ) ,  and Mr. Puig s i t  on t h e  other s i d e  of 

t h a t  door ( i n d i c a t i n g ) ,  o r  v ice -versa .  

MS. COHAN: NO. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Back down. 

OFFICER DIAZt I w i l l  stay here .  I have 

g o t  t o  w r i t e  a r e p o r t .  

MR. WILLIAMSt D.C., I t h i n k  you might  

want t o  come a long  because t h e  Judge might want t o  

ask you some q u e s t i o n s ,  and I might want t o  ask you 

some q u e s t i o n s  i n  f r o n t  ofhim. 

OFFICER DIAZ: Sure. No problem. 

Do you want Ricardo down t h e r e ,  t o o ?  

MR. WILLIAMSt No, we a o n ' t  need him. 

OFFICER DIAZ: Do you want Pu ig  down t h e r e ?  

MR. f?ILLIAMSt No, you can talk f o r  t h e  

two of you. 



OFFICER D I A Z :  No, I d o n ' t  t a l k  for 

anybody, 

MR. WILLIAMS: Oh, come on. 

O F F I C E R  D I A Z :  You are g e t t i n g  obnoxious  

now, 

(Whereupon, t h e  f o l l o w i n g  p r o c e e d i n g s  

were had b e f o r e  t h e  Honorable  G e r a l d  Kogan i n  

chambers:) 

THE COURT: What 's  t h e  problem? 

MR, WILLIAMS:  I eua t r y i n g  to d i s i n v i t e  

M r ,  P u i g  and M r .  Diaz from f u r t h e r  a t t e n d a n c e  i n s i d e  

t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ,  

I a m  a b o u t  t o  get i n t o  some a r e a s  t h a t  a r e  

v e r y  material and v a r y  c r i t i c a l ,  

W e  are back i n  Ms. Cohan's o f f i c e ,  I 

don't know i f  y o u ' v e  ever had t h e  p l e a s u r e  of  b e i n g  

i n  t h e r e .  I t ' s  back i n  t h e  c o r n e r  of  t he  S t a t e  

A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e .  I t  h a s  two e n t r a n c e  d o o r s .  It 

i s  v i r t u a l l y  i n a c c e s s i b l e  t o  anybody because  o f  t h e  

job h e r  secretaries do a t  t h e  f r o n t ,  but i n  t e r m s  o f  

s e c u r i t y  f o r  M r .  Mora les ,  there is no r e a s o n  why 

M r .  Puig c a n ' t  be o u t s i d e  one d o o r ,  and Mr, Diaz 

o u t s i d e  a n o t h e r  door .  

They d o n ' t  need him i n s i d e .  

-THE COURT: Who i s  i n s i d e  t h e  room now? 



MR. WILLIAMS: M r .  Mora les ,  M r .  P u i g ,  

M r .  D i az ,  MS. Cohan, t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r ,  and myse l f ,  

THE COURT: T h a t ' s  a113 W e  d o n ' t  have any 

o f  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  a t  t h i s  t ime?  

MR. WILLIAMS: I f  any of t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  

a r e  t h e r e ,  I have  no p r o b h m  w i t h  t h e i r  b e i n g  t h e r e  

because  t h e n ,  I can  see a legit imate conce rn ,  a t  

l e a s t  f o r  t h e i r  p resenoe .  

MS. COHAN: Judge ,  I r e a l l y  and t r u l y  don' 

f e e l  comfo r t ab l e  w i t h  Mr. Morales  w i t h o u t  a  p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r  p r e s e n t .  

THE COURT: Here's what we can  do. 

MR. WILLIAMS8 I am n o t  t h e  leas t  b i t  

a f r a i d .  

THE COURTI You are now g e t t i n g  i n t o  

t e s t i m o n y  which M r .  Diaz and M r .  P u i g  might  have 

been i n v o l v e d  i n ?  

M S .  COHAN: H e  h a s  been deposed, 

THE COURT2 I know t h a t ,  b u t  t h e  i s s u e  

i s  s e v e r e d  from t h a t .  

I c a n  unde r s t and  M r .  Morales  b e i n g  i n  

t h e r e  w i t h  a p o l i c e  o f f i c e r .  Can you g e t  a n o t h e r  

p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  i n  t h e r e ?  

MR. W I L L I A M S :  Judge ,  s h e  h a s  no r e a s o n  t o  

fear M r .  Morales .  



MS. COHAN: It's not that X f ea r  M r .  Morale 

Your Honor, there i s  a n  a l l e g e d  c o n t r a c t  

o u t  f o r  m e  a s  w e l l .  

MR. WILLIAMS: Oh, s h i t .  

W e l l ,  Judge, M r .  ~ i a z  can  be r i g h t  o u t s i d e  

one d o o r ,  and M r .  Pu ig  c a n  be r i g h t  o u t s i d e  t h e  o t h e r  

d o o r ,  and  t h e r e  is  no way on e a r t h  t h a t  somebody can 

get i n t o  t h a t  office u n l e s s  t h e y  a r e  Spiderman. 

THE COURT: She a l s o  wants  somebody i n  t h e r  

w i t h  her, 

MR. WILLIAMS: Judge,  there i s  no need for 

it. There  r e a l l y  i s n ' t ,  Judge. 

If DOC. Diaz can't stop somebody from 

coming th rough  t h e  doo r ,  t h e n ,  he a i n ' t  go ing  to be  

a b l e  t o  s t o p  Chem once he  gets  i n s i d e ,  

THE COURT: I can unde r s t and  O f f i c e r  

D i a l  and O f f i c e r  pu ig  n o t  be ing  i n  t h e r e ,  because  you 

may be touch ing  upon m a t e r i a l  t h a t  may be n e c e s s a r y  

to c a l l  them conce rn ing  it, I can  unde r s t and  t h a t  

p a r t ,  b u t  i f  she wants  somebody i n  t h e r e  with h e r ,  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

she i a  e n t i t l e d  t o  have some p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  Ln - the re .  

MR. WILLIAMS: I f  M r .  Cohan i s  l e g i t i m a t e 1 3  

concerned for her  wel l -be ing ,  and t h i s  i s  t h e  f i r s t  

I h a v e  e v e r  heard about  any " c o n t r a c t  on h e r  l i f e , "  

t h e n ,  I have no q u a r r e l  o n  t h a t .  



Let h e r  get somebody from P u b l i c  Safety 

L i a i s o n  o r  C i t y  of  Miami or  one of t h e  S t a t e  A t to rney '  

i n v e s t i g a t o r a  t o  sit t h e r e  w i t h  a gun. I d o n ' t  care 

abou t  t h a t ,  b u t  t h e r e  c e r t a i n l y  is no need f o r  e i t h e r  

of  t h e s e  men t o  be i n s i d e ,  and from t h e  p o i n t  of  

view of s e c u r i t y ,  i f  I were concerned for  my w e l l - b e i n  

I would r a t h e r  have people  pos t ed  a t  t h e  e n t r y  p o i n t a  

o u t s i d e  r a t h e r  t h a n  i n s i d e ,  because  there is no o t h e r  

way i n ,  

M S .  COHAN: I n  terms of  D e t e c t i v e  Pu ig  

be ing  i n  t h e  room n e x t  doo r ,  I have no t r o u b l e  w i t h  

t h a t ,  because  e has n o t  been deposed bytanyone i n  

t h i s  ca se .  

I n  terms of  D e t e c t i v e  Diaa, on t h e  other 

hand,  w e  had a n i n e  day d e p o s i t i o n .  H e  i s  of r e c o r d  

a l r e a d y  concern ing  a l l  matters on Ricardo Moralee,  

and I would suggest, a t  t h i s  p o i n t ,  he i s  u n l i k e l y  t o  

change h i s  t e s t imony  because of  any th ing  he hears 

M r .  Moxalea s a y ,  which i s  p u b l i c  anyway. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Your Honor w e l l  knows why 

t h e r e  are r e a s o n s  f o r  M r .  Diaz being outside. 

THE COURT: XlI righ-f:; 3f you are -goinc- - 

i n t o  t h o s e  a r e a s  t h a t  Officer Diaz may, i n  f a c t ,  

have knowledge about  o r  may have to t e s t i f y  about, 

d e s p i t e  t h e  f a c t  you have a l r e a d y  t a k e n  his d e p a s i t i o ~  



then, during that portion, he may remain outside the 

door, 

However, Ms. Cohan is entitled to have 

an armed deputy or two armed duties inside that 

particular room with her, so those are the arrangement 

we will make, 

MR, WILLIAMS: That certainly isn't my 

complaint. 

If she thinks it's necessary, I am quite  

content to sit with as many armed police officers as 

would make her feel comfortable, and I am sure that 

the S t a t e  Attorney's chief investigator can furnish 

them dust like that (indicating a snap of the fingers1 

MS- CORAN: That is inaccurate. 

THE COURT: It's up to whoever she wants- 

She can choose whatever officers she wants in there 

with her at the time, and Mr- Diaz and Mr. Puig 

can stay outside the doors during that period of time, 

MR. WILLIAMS: I would just want the 

people bf Ms. Cohan's choice not to be folks who have 

any- s igni f icant  co_nneatio_nwiththe ca3e - from - - - here - 

- - - 

on out, so, you know, if it's Raul ~artinez, that is 

just about the same degree of evil. 

MS. COHAN: Your Honor, we pr~bably have 

a good two weeks left of.Ricardo Morales' deposition. 

L 



MR. WILLIAMS: N o ,  I a m  t a k i n g  t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  and I know w e  d o n ' t  have two weeks l e f t .  

THE COURT: H e  s a y s  he  d o e s n ' t  have two 

weeks l e f t .  A week and a h a l f ?  

MR. WILLIAMSI N o ,  sir. 

MS. COHAN: There i s  a l i m i t  as to how man! 

people  I can t i e  up i n  c o u r t  o r  i n  my o f f i c e  on h i s  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  and w e  a r e  about r each ing  t h a t  l i m i t .  

MR. WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  t h en ,  l e t  M r o  Diaz 

and M r .  Pu ig  go about  t h e i r  b u s i n e s s ,  and let's have 

two o t h e r  e q u a l l y  competent ,  i f  t h e r e  a r e ,  and maybe 

t h e r e  a r e n ' t ,  but l e t ' s  have two o t h e r  law enforce-  

ment o f f i c e r s  who w i l l  a t t empt  t o  be t h e  same degree  

of competence f o r  s e c u r i t y .  

THE COURT: That  w i l l  be my r u l i n g .  You 

can  have two o t h e r  o f f i c e r a  i n  t h e r e  i f  you want t o  

t h a t  a re  armed, s o  you a l l  work it o u t  w i t h  yourae lve  

M S .  COHAN: Your Honor, M r ,  Moralea i s  

M r .  Diaz '  source, H e  i s  a  c o n t r o l  for M r .  ~ o r a l e s ,  

and a s  such -- 
- - - - - - - THE COUR'P: - -I -real&- *ha*, - and -hat - w i l l  

happen is when M r ,  Morales i s  f i n i s h e d  t e s t i f y i n g ,  

t h e  guards w i l l  s t a y  w i th  him t h e r e  u n t i l  M r .  Diaz 

comes t o  g e t  h im,  s o  M r .  Morales d o e s n ' t  have t o  

l e a v e  your o f f i c e  w i thou t  M r .  Diaz being wi th  him. 



MR, WILLIAMS: Thank you. 

THE COURTt So, l e t ' s  work i t  t h a t  way. 

M S .  COHAN: Thank you. 

(Thereupon, a s h o r t  recess was t a k e n  

a f t e r  which t h e  fo l l owing  proceed ings  were had i n  t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n :  ) 

MS, COHANa In t e r m s  of  t oday ,  t h e r e  a r e  

no d e f e n d a n t s  here, and I have no problem proceeding.  

( O f f i c e r  Diaz and O f f i c e r  Puig  l e f t  t h e  

room. ) 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q M r .  Morales,  d i d  t h e r e  come a t i m e  when yo1 

m e t  and spoke w i th  a man by t h e  name of  John 

Ro thch i ld ,  a writer, o r  at l ea s t ,  a pe r son  who wro te  

an a r t i c l e  f o r  Ha rpe r ' s  Magazine? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you, as a matter of f a c t ,  give M r .  

Ro thch i ld  i n fo rma t ion  of any s o r t  t o  a s s i s t  him i n  thc 

w r i t i n g  of an a r t i c l e  t h a t  appeared i n  Ha rpe r ' s  

Magazine i n  t h e  J anua ry ,  1982 i s s u e ?  

A That  i s  i n c o r r e c t ,  I never spoke w i t h  

M r ,  Ro thch i ld  w i t h  r e g a r d  t o  t h a t  a r t i c l e ,  and the 

time t h a t  I have a c o n t a c t ,  p e r s o n a l  c o n t a c t ,  w i th  

M r ,  Ro thch i ld  was i n  Caracas, Venezuela,  and I was 

do ing  t h e  t a l k i n g  way back i n  1976. 



Q Did you, Mr. Morales, speak with anybody, 

having in mind the fact that your information or your 

information or your conversations were to play any 

part at all, any part at all, in the writing of the 

article attributed to Mr. Rothchild in the January, 

1982 issue of Harper's? 

A NO, sir. 

Q Have you had any communication with MI. 

Rothchild or Harper's Magazine, itself, their 

editorial staff, since the article was published in 

middle or late December of 19813 

A Yes, with Mr. Rothchild before the article 

came out. 

Q What was the purpose of that conversation? 

A Just to say hello to him. 

Q Did you see any of the galleys or proofs 

of the article before it was published? 

A No, sir. 

Q Did anybody read any portion of it to you? 

A No, sir. 

Q Did you have any advance knowledge, from 
- - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - 

any source, whatsoever, concerning any of the contents 

of the article written by Mr. Rothchild? 

A Nope. 

Q Have you read the article?. 



A Y e s .  

MS. COHAN: An it i s  r a t h e r  i n a c c u r a t e .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q X'd l i k e  t o  read you a couple  of l i n e s  

from the a r t i c l e ,  l i n e  by l i n e ,  o r  phrase by phrase. 

A L e t  m e  know what you are reading. 

Q Yes, and t h e n ,  after I read it t o  you, 

I ' d  like to have you tall m e  whether -- 
A What page? 

Q After I read it, I would l i k e  to  have you 

t e l l  m e  whether t h e  a r t i c l e  -- 
A What page? 

Q A f t e r  I r e a d  it t o  you, I would l i k e  to 

have you tell m e  whether t h e  p o r t i o n s  that I read t o  

you a r e  true or  u n t r u e ,  and i f  u n t r u e ,  i n  what 

p a r t i c u l a r ,  and XIOW, I a m  s t a r t i n g  on Page 32 .  

A 32 .  

Q I n  t h e  r i g h t  hand column, t h e  second f u l l  

paragraph, the paragraph s t a r t s  w i th  t h e  language, 

*OCezo wag-  a n o t h e r  a n t i - C a s t x o - z e a l o t , "  a d  I a m  not- - 

concerned with t h e  t r u t h  o r  n o t  o f  t h a t .  

Tell m e  whether t h i s  c o n t e n t  of t h e  a r t i c l e  

i s  t r u e ?  

A When? 

Q uIn 1979, he -- r e f e r r i n g  t o  O t e r o  -- and 



Morales were such good f r i e n d s ,  t h a t  Morales had 

h i s  own key to O t e r o ' s  apar tment ."  

Is t h a t  t r u e  o r  n o t ?  

A That  i s  i n c o r r e c t ,  

Q What about  it i s  i n c o r r e c t ,  s i r ?  Is it 

i n c o r r e c t  t h a t  you were good f r i e n d s ,  o r  i s  it 

i n c o r r e c t  t h a t  you had a key t o  h i s  apar tment  o r  both3 

A It i s  i n c o r r e c t  that I had a key t o  h i s  

apar tment .  

Q Did he have a key t o  your apar tment?  

A O f  c o u r s e  n o t .  

Q At the end of! t h a t  same paragraph  a r e  

t h e s e  s en t ences :  "Once a g a i n ,  t h e  Monkey came t o  t h e  

a i d  o f  l a w  enforcement  and d e c l a r e d  that Otero  was 

t h e i r  bomber, Thia was i n  December, 1975." 

Is t h a t  c o r r e c t  o r  i n c o r r e c t ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t o  that q u e s t i o n .  

Q Answer t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  a s  I p u t  it t o  you, 

p l e a a e ,  s i r ?  

M S .  COHAN: A r e  you adop t ing  your p r ev ious  

answer? 

THE WITNESS: I a m  a d o p t i n g  t h e  p rev ious  

answer. 

M S .  COHAN: And t h a t  answer was no. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Well, no. If he is going 



t o  rely on his answer, then, w e  w i l l  stay wi th  t h e  

r e c o r d ,  b u t  t h a t  i s  n o t  t h e  same q u e s t i o n  t h a t  I 

a m  asking. 

THE WITNESS: I never d e c l a r e d  t h a t  

Ote ro  was t h e  bomber. How can w e  go t o  something t h a t  

i s  comple te ly  i n c o r r e c t ,  Rina? 

M S .  COHAN: A t  t h i s  t i m e ,  I would r e q u e s t  

t h a t  M r .  W i l l i a m s  mark a copy of t h e  Harper ' s  ~ a g a z i n c  

a r t i c l e  f o r  t h e  r eco rd  and a t t a c h  it t h e r e t o  as 

an exhibit a i n c e  w e  are referring to it as a matter 

of  record. 

MR. WILLIAMSt I have no problem wi th  t h a t  

The  o n l y  copy I have wi th  m e  h a s  my n o t a t i l  

and h i g h l i g h t s  w i t h  it. 

T h e  copy t h a t  M r .  Morales has  t h a t  h e  g o t  

from you o r  your desk, is a p p a r e n t l y  a c l e a n  copy, 

so i f  you want t o  mark that one,  I have no problem 

w i t h  t h a t ,  

M S .  COHAN: I ' l l  make ano the r  copy of  t h a t  

because  I i n t e n d  t o  mark it. 
- - - - - - - - - - -  

(Whereup6ni, -me- dacumgrrt- referred- te was - 

marked Defendant ' s  E x h i b i t  No. 1 f o r  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

BY MR. WILLIAMS% 

Q The nex t  paragraph begins :  "Having 

informed on h i s  f r i e n d ,  Morales went back t o  Otero  



wi th  some u s e f u l  adv ice :  Leave t h e  coun t ry , "  

Is t h a t  s en t ence  c o r r e c t  or i n c o r r e c t ?  

A It is  i n c o r r e c t .  I never  t o l d  Mr, .Otero 

t o  l e a v e  t h e  coun t ry ,  which f a l r e a d y  answered t o  

t h a t  q u e s t i o n  e x t e n s i v e l y .  

Q Next s en t ence  r eads :  "Otero took it," 

Do you have any p e r s o n a l  knowledge whether 

t h a t  i s  c o r r e c t  or  i n c o r r e c t ?  

A No. 

MS. COHAM: Objection, a s  f a r  as it being 

based on a n  i n a c c u r a t e  assumption,  

H e  j u s t  said he d i d n ' t  t e l l  him t o  l e a v e  

t h e  coun t ry .  

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q The n e x t  a sn t ence  r eads :  Then, Morale8 

t o l d  t h e  unders tandably  u p s e t  p o l i c e  t h a t  t h e  leak 

t o  Otero  had come from FmBeIo Agent B a l l , "  

True o r  un t rue?  

A Untrue. 

Q I'm s o r r y ?  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- - - - - - - - - - -  
- - - - - - - - 

A Untrue. 

Q  id you, sir, ever a d v i s e  anybody t h a t  

e i t h e r  Agent B a l l  o r  any o t h e r  FmBoI. Agent had had 

any th ing  to do  w i t h  Otero's d e p a r t u r e  from t h e  

coun t ry?  



A N o ,  s i r .  

Q Did you have any conversation with  any 

l a w  enforcement agency a t  a11 t h a t  pertained t o  t h e  

f a c t  t h a t  Otero  had l e f t  t h e  coun t ry  and why? 

A I a l r e a d y  t o l d  you t h a t  I got i n  touch 

wi th  t h e  F,B.I , ,  and I t o l d  them t h a t  t h e  Condor was 

about t o  f l i g h t ,  and t h a t  was I t ,  

Q D o  you have any knowledge whether Agent 

Joe B a l l  from the F.B.I .  d i d ,  i n  f a c t ,  execute  an  

a f f i d a v i t  denying t h a t  he had anything t o  do with 

Otero ' s  f l i g h t ? .  

A No pe r sona l  knowledge. 

Q Have you heard anyth ing  about  i t ?  

A Somewhere along t h o s e  l i n e s  i n  t h i s  

a r t ic le ,  t h e r e  i s  some reference t o  t h a t .  

Q Y e s ,  i t ' s  r i g h t  t h e r e .  

A I t ' s  r i g h t  t h e r e .  

Q Right  i n  t h e  nex t  couple  of s en t ences ,  

My q u e s t i o n  i s ,  whether,  e x u l u s i v e  of 

the a r t i c l e ,  outside of t h e  a r t i c l e ,  you e v e r  heard 

t h a t  B a l l  d i d ,  i n  f a c t , - e x e c u t e  an  a f f i d a v i t  denying 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

any p a r t  i n  Otero ' s  d e p a r t u r e ?  

A I have no pe r sona l  knowledge of  anyth ing  

l i k e  t h a t .  

Q D i d  you hear it from anywhere? 





by February of 1976, you had hired Otero in Venezuela, 

and had sent him to Chile on some DISIP mission? 

A I didn't recruit Rolando Otero for that 

mission. 

Q One of your superiors did? 

A My immediate superior. 

Q Did you have anything at all to do with 

Otero'a being given that mission? Anything at all? 

A It was my superiors, the ones who outlined 

t h e  whole procedure. 

0 Here's my question to yous Did you have 

anything at all to do with Otero's being sent on the  

miasion to Chile? 

A I was carrying orders from my superior 

to expedite his mission to Chile. 

0 Did you discus8 the mission with your 

superiors? 

A Yes, of course. 

Q Did you discuss the mission with Otero? 

A We discussed it all along. 

Q Is that a y e s ,  sir, that you discussed 

it with Otero? 

A Yes, Otero, my superior, and myself. 

Q Were you then actively involved in the 

chain of circumstances that gave rise to Oterots 
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going t o  C h i l e ?  

A I t  was p a r t  of t h e  c h a i n  of  command. 

Q I ' l l  t a k e  that a s  a yes .  

Did you ever promise any American a u t h o r i t i  

t h a t  you would r e t u r n  t o  Miami t o  t e s t i f y  a g a i n s t  

Otero?  

M S .  COHAN: A r e  you r e f e r r i n g  t o  a l i n e  

i n  t h e  a r t i c l e ?  

MR, WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  t h e r e  i s  a l i n e  t o  
a 

t h a t  e f f e c t  i n  t h e  a r t i c l e ,  b u t  it d o e s n ' t  make 

any d i f f e r e n c e .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q D i d  t h e r e  e v e r  come a t i m e ,  whether  you 

want t o  r ead  it from t h e  a r t i c l e  o r  n o t ,  when you t o l d  

anybody connecte2 w i t h  law enforcement i n  t h e  South 

F l o r i d a  a r e a  t h a t  you would come t o  t h e  South F l o r i d a  

a r e a  t o  appear i n  c o u r t  t o  t e s t i f y  a g a i n a t  Rolando 

Otero?  

A T h a t ' s  n o t  t h e  way it happened, 

If you d o n ' t  mind, can I t e l l  you t h e  way 

it happened? 

Q Okay. 

A Came up t h e  t i m e  when t h e  American 

a u t h o r i t i e s  p u t  up a r e q u e s t  t o  t h e  Venezuelan 

government t h a t ,  i n  t h e  e v e n t  t h a t  Mr, Otero  would 



be apprehended and returned to the United States, 

that they will make a request f o r  me to be present  to 

testify i n  his trial. 

Take it that way. That' s the way it 

happened, 

Q Rsre's my question to you -- 
A And that's my answer, 

I am telling you the way it happened, 

0 Listen to my question, Mr. Morales. 

Did you, yourself, ever engage i n  conver- 

sation with anybody connected wi th  law enforcement in 

the United States, either at the State or Federal 

level, in the course of which you said you would be 

available to t e s t i f y  against Otero? Now, t h a t  c a l l s  

for a yes or no, Either you talked to some such 

person, or you didn't talk to some such person, 

A After, after, after -- the F o B . I , ,  I l e t  

my superior officer i n  the Foreign Ministry and 

DISIP, there came a time when I did have conversation 

you know, with regard to my future appearance in the 

Otero trial a s  a witness, 

Q With whom did you have such conversations 

on behalf of? 

A The F . B . I .  

Q With whom, please, sir? 



A Agent Joe B a l l .  

Q I n  t h e  cou r se  of t h a t  conve r sa t ion  o r  

t h o s e  c o n v e r s a t i o n s ,  d i d  you t e l l  Agent J o e  B a l l  t h a t  

you would be a v a i l a b l e  and would b e  w i l l i n g  t o  

t e s t i f y  a g a i n s t  Otero?  

A That was prepos t e rous  a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  

w e  were d i s c u s s i n g  t h a t  because -- 
MS, COHAN: Yes, no, you d o n ' t  know? 

BY MR* WILLIAMS: 

Q Did you t e l l  Agent Joe B a l l  from t h e  

F.B.I. t h a t  you would be a v a i l a b l e  and w i l l i n g  t o  
" ~ -  " 

t e s t i f y  a g a i n s t  Otero  i n  proceed ings  in any c o u r t  

i n  the United S t a t e s ?  

A With t h e  approva l  of  t h e  Venezuelan 

government. 

Q Is t h a t  a yes ,  sir? 

A Is t h a t  a yes wi th  the approva l  of  t h e  

Venezuelan government, 

Q Did you, thereafter, f o r  any reason a t  

a l l ,  n o t  appear  a t  t h e  t i m e  when there was some 

proceeding a g a i n s t  Ote ro  i n  any c o u r t  i n  t h e  United 

S t a t e s  a t  which your t es t imony had been r eques t ed?  

A When Otero  was i n  t r i a l  in J a c k s o n v i l l e . ?  

Q A t  any t i m e ,  a t  any p l ace .  

Was t h e r e  a t i m e  when t h e r e  was a proceedir  
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at which your testimony was sought when you did not 

appear there? 

A Of course I wasn't there, I was never 

subpoenaed 

MS. COHAN: Mr. Williams, he has answered 

the question yea. 

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q Then, it is true that there was a time 

when you had told some American law enforcement 

authorities that you would appear to testify against 

Otero, and then, subsequently, did not appear; isn't 

that correct? 

A In the sense that you are putting up the 

question, the answer is yes. 

Q Were you still friendly with Rolando Oteroi 

A When? 

Q L e t  m e  ask it to you another way,.then. 

Did there come a time when your friendship 

with Otero discantfnued? 

A Well, there was a time I didn't see Otero 

for quite-a Long-time, but the friendship was never 

discontinued. 

Q A s  the result of your conversations with 

Agent Ball concerning your appearance and testimony 

in any t r i a l .  of Otero, didn't B a l l  let you know that 



your testimony was regarded as being necessary in 

order to obtain a conviction? Didn't he let you 

know that? 

A Not necessarily because they have four 

more witnesses against Mr. Otero. 

Q Didn't Mr. Ball tell you that he and the 

prosecutors thought that your appearance and testimon: 

was fndiapensible to a conviction? 

A No, air, that is not the word he used. 

Q What was the word that he used to 

describe the need that the government had for your 

testimony? 

A They got four witnesses, and I was going 

to be the fifth. 

Q Didn't Mr. Ball make it apparent to you 

that he thought it important that you be there? 

A Of course. All prosecutors are, you know, 

whatever, think that having a witness is important. 

Q When you told Mr. Ball that you were going 

to appear -- 
A That I was going to what? 

Q Appear at Otero's trial, were you trying 

to deceive him? 

A Who? 

Q Ball? 



A There was no t  even a t r i a l  d a t e  s e t .  

Ote ro  was s t i l l  at l a r g e ,  

Q My question was -- 
A No i s  the answer. 

Q You weren ' t  t r y i n g  t o  deceive him? Thank 

you. 

Was it your  i n t e n t i o n  when you t o l d  B a l l  

t h a t  you would appear  and t e s t i f y ,  t h a t  h e  b e l i e v e .  

you and maly upon what you s a i d ?  

A H e  has t o  make a r e q u e s t ,  a formal request 

t o  t h e  Venezuelan government. I d o n ' t  know what 

Mr, B a l l  thought .  

Q Here's my ques t ion :  Was it your i n t e n t i o n  

when you t o l d  him t h a t  you would be t h e r e  -- 
A To comply wi th  my o r d e r s .  

Q Now, l i s t e n  to m y  q u e s t i o n s ,  M r ,  Morales,  

A L i s t e n  t o  my answers, f o r  t h e  fun  of it. 

Q Who else d i d  it wi th  you? Who else 

was with  you? 

A Oh, F ranc i sco  Rodriguez Tomayo, a l s o  known 

as Panch i t a  Jabon Candado. 

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q You can answer it. 

A Vague, 

M S .  cOHAN: Did you mean i t  when you told 



him? 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q When you t o l d  Mr, B a l l  t h a t  you would 

appear  and t e s t i f y  f o r  t h e  government, d i d  you say it 

to him i n t e n d i n g  t h a t  he  b e l i e v e  you, or  d i d  you say 

it t o  him i n t e n d i n g  that he n o t  b e l i e v e  you? 

A I s a i d  it t o  him t h a t  I w i l l  f o l l ow the 

o r d e r s  o f  my s u p e r i o r s ,  and he  knew t h a t ,  t h a t  I have 

a government on t o p  of  him -- t o p  of me, and it was 

e x t e n s i v e l y  d i s c u s s e d ,  

Q When you t o l d  him t h a t  you were going  t o  

be t h e r e  t o  t e s t i f y ,  were you t r y i n g  t o  mi s l ead  hin? 

A No, sir. 

Q Were you t r y i n g  t o  dece ive  him? 

A N o .  

Q Were you t r y i n g  to g e t  him t o  r e l y  upon 

your word f o r  t h e  purpose o f  be ing  d i sadvantaged?  

A It was n o t  my word. I t  was orders from my 

s u p e r i o r s ,  and I was not t r y i n g  t o  dece ive  M r .  Ball 

o r  t o  p l a y  a game or do a number on Mr, B a l l ,  

Q So, you s a i d  it t o  h i p  * t e n d i n g t h a t  -he - - 

p p p p p p p p p - - - - - - - - - - -  

b e l i e v e  you; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

MS. COHAN: Ob jec t ion ,  Asked and answered, 

MR. WILLIAMS: It h a s n ' t  been answered. 

THE WITNESS: f d i d n ' t  i n t e n d  anyth ing .  



T h e  word i n t e n d  might  have a meaning f o r  you i n  your 

b u s i n e s s ,  b u t  t h e  word i n t e n d  i n  my bus inesa  a t  t h e  

t i m e  has a d i f f e r e n t  meaning, 

The word intend -- you know, c o u n t s  

no th ing ,  I have a cha in  of command, I have t o  follow 

o r d e r s ,  

They have a long  procedure  a head of  

O te ro  was n o t  i n  cus tody.  There was n o t  even a day 

f o r  t r i a l  o r  whatever ,  

MS, COHAN: No more? 

THE WITNESS: A r e  w e  through wi th  t h e  

garbage? 

BY MR, WILLIAMSt 

Q A f t e r  you had s h o t  and k i l l e d  E l a d i o  

L u i s ,  were you ever in te rv iewed  by any p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r s  t o  de te rmine  whether you had any p a r t  i n  

t h a t  episode? 

MS, COHAN: I'm s o r r y .  I d i d n ' t  h e a r  

t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  Can you hold on one second,  and l e t  

m e  get  a phone c a l l ?  

( O f f  t h e  r e c o r d , )  

THE WITNESS: There i s  a q u e s t i o n  pending,  

M S .  COHAN: Yes, t h e r e  i s ,  

Can you r ead  it back, because I was on 

t h e  phone? There i s  a pending q u e s t i o n ,  



(Whereupon, the question referred to was 

read into the record by the court reporter.) 

MS. COHAN: Come on. 

THE WITNESS: The same -- no, I can answer 
to  that. I t ' s  no problem with that. 

MS. COHAM: 1. know. 

THE WITNESS: The same day t h a t  M r .  Eladio 

Luis pass away, I surrendered myself in the company 

of my two attorneys, and we went down to the City of 

Miami Police Department. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Who interviewed you? 

A Huh? 

Q Who interviewed you? Who were the police 

officers? 

A 

there. 

Q 

of them? 

A 

a 

Diaz? 

A 

Q 

I don't recall. There was a bunch of peopll 

Was a police officer Walter ~artinez one 

I don't recall. 

Do you remember a police officer Joe 

I don% recall. 

Did the one whom we now know as Lieutenant 

Raul Diaz ,  whatever his rank was at t h e  t ime ,  subse- 



q u e n t l y  appear  a t  t h e  p o l i c e  s t a t i o n ?  

A H e  wasn ' t  t h e r e ,  

Q D i d  any of t h e  police o f f i c e r s  i n t e r r o g a t e  

you about  your involvement i n  t h e  ep isode?  

A As f a r  as I can recal l ,  under t h e  adviae 

of my a t t o r n e y s ,  and they  took t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  o r  

whatever t h e y  want t o  c a l l  it, whatever it was, 

Q Statement?  

A You can ca l l  it whatever you want. 

Q They asked you q u e s t i o n s  about  whether 

you had anyth ing  t o  do wi th  t h e  k i l l i n g ;  c o r r e c t ?  

A Y e s .  

Q D i d  you t e l l  them t h a t  you had? 

A I w a s  under advise of my a t t o r n e y s .  

Q My q u e s t i o n  t o  you, sir ,  i a  whether you 

t o l d  them t h a t  you had been involved  i n  t h e  k i l l i n g ,  

o r  d i d  you deny involvement i n  t h e  k i l l i n g ?  

A I was under t h e  a d v i s e  of  my a t t o r n e y s ,  

Q Yes, sir ,  and what i s  your answer t o  m y  

q u e s t i o n ?  
p p p p p p p p p - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

MS, COHAN: Did you a s s e r t  t h e  5 t h  

Amendment? 

THE WITNESS2 No, 

MR, WILLIAMS: Sorry .  

M S .  COHANz It d i d n ' t  work. 



BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Now, did you admit your part in the killing 

A Of course not. 

Q But, when you denied your involvement in 

the killing, that wasn't true; was it? 

MS. COHAN: Objection. There has been no 

testimony he denied his involvement in the killing. 

H e  said he didn't admit, 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Did you deny that you had any part in the 

killing? 

A Of course. 

Q When you denied your part in the killing, 

that wasn't true; was it? 

A Yes, 

Q It was true? 

A It was true what? 

Q What I'm asking you is, whether, when you 

denied your part in the killing of Eladio R u i z ,  you 

were telling the truth? 

- - - -  - A - - Of -course not, Douglas. You know that. 

Q That clearly, then, would be one occasion 

upon which you gave information to the police -- 
A I was not giving information to anybody 

on that occasion, 



Q Now, l e t  m e  f i n i s h  my q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  Moraler 

That  would be one occas ion  upon which you 

made some f a c t u a l  s t a t e m e n t  t o  t h e  p o l i c e  t h a t  w a s  

f a l s e  when you knew it t o  be f a l s e ,  and you in t ended  

t h a t  t h e  p o l i c e  r e l y  upon t h e  f a l s e n e s s ;  c o r r e c t ?  

A I had t w o  a t t o r n e y s  p r e s e n t  a t  t h e  t i m e .  

Q You can t e l l  m e  ye s  o r  no f i rs t ,  and t h e n ,  

e x p l a i n  it. 

A I have two a t t o r n e y s  -- yes .  I have 

two a t t o r n e y s  p r e s e n t ,  and f was, you know, whatever  

I s a i d  t h e r e  w a s  under  t h e  a d v i c e  o f  my a t t o r n e y s ,  

and you now are t h e  de fense  a t t o r n e y ,  and you should  

know b e t t e r .  

Q Did your  a t t o r n e y s  t e l l  you t o  l i e ,  

M r .  Morales? 

M S .  COHAN: Ob jec t i on  t o  any -- 
MR. WILLIAMS: You c a n ' t  ra ise t h a t .  

Now, you j u s t  l e a v e  him a lone .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q D i d  your a t t o r n e y s  t e l l  you t o  l i e ?  

MS. COHAM: I w i l l  n o t  r a i s e  it. Rowever, 
\ 

I w i l l  inform t h e  w i tnes s .  

MR. WILLIAMS! You do n o t  have t o  g i v e  him 

any a d v i c e s .  

C o m e  on, Rina. Be a little bit fair t o d a y ,  



MS. COHAN: There is a p r i v i l e g e  a g a i n s t  

d i s c l o s i n g  any c o n v e r s a t i o n s  that you and your  a t t o r n e l  

had i n  t h e  c o u r s e  of t h e i r  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n  of you, 

THE WITNESS: O f  c o u r s e ,  I know t h a t .  

You know, a t  l e a s t ,  you know, I know that 

t h o s e  are  my rights now t h a t  you are  t r y i n g  

now. 

I t  i s  c o n f i d e n t i a l  between m y  a t t o r n e y s  

and myse l f .  

You shou ld  show a l i t t l e  more respect, you 

know, from members of your  own Bar, f o r  C h r i s t ' s  

sake. I mean, you are t o o  much, 

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q Are you now asserting your a t t o r n e y - c l i e n t  

p r i v i l e g e ,  M r .  Morales? 

A I n  t h a t  case, of c o u r s e ,  and you know t h a t  

My God, you know -- I mean, you a r e  g o i n g  

t o  b u r n  i n  h e l l  badly.  

f won' t  be t h e r e .  I won't be t h e r e  t o  

listen to your  b i c k e r i n g .  

MR. WILLIAMS: Like  Kenny Loggins s a y s ,  

Ricky,  Veep t h e  f i r e s  burn ing . "  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q During 1 9 7 8 ,  M r .  Morales, were you t h e n  

p r o v i d i n g  p o l i c e  with or  any  l a w  enforcement  agency 





level or any intelligence officer with regard to any 

information of the sort they normally got from you? 

A No, no, no. 

Q As I understand it, then, between your 

return to South Florida from Venezuela and the time 

you were arrested in 1978, you weren't giving infor- 

mation to anybody? 

A No. I was interviewed by the FwBwI,  

with regard to what happened in Venezuela that X took 

off from there, and that was it. 

Q When you were providing information to 

the police during the late sixties and early 

seventies before your departure for Venezuela, was 

that statement that you were engaged in the various 

bombing incidents or episodes that you described to 

us before? 

A If you go to the record, you will see, you 

know, the times that I was involved in bombings, 

that, you know, I have stop all kind of activities 

with a couple of exceptions. 

Qna was &hat  1973 - -  you know, hand grenade 
thrower, and I was not engaged in any kind of 

criminal activities, as you want to put it out, at 

the time that I was in the employ of the Federal 

Bureau of Investigations, the Central Intelligence 



Agency, o r  t h e  Drug Enforcement Admin i s t r a t i on .  

I f  you a r e  going t o  i n c l u d e  any b a r  f i g h t s ,  

you know, o r  t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  happens v e r y  commonly 

i n  l i f e ,  i n  d a i l y  l i f e .  You know, I c a n ' t  h e l p  it, 

Barroom f i g h t s ,  you know, b rawl s ,  and t h i n g s  l i k e  t ha l  

l i k e ,  you know, we a lmos t  g o t  t oday  -- you and me. 

MS. COHAN: R e f e r r i n g  t o  M r .  Wi l l iams;  

n o t  t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q M r .  Morales ,  i s  t h e r e  some t i m e  w i t h i n  

t h e  p a s t  t h r e e  and a h a l f  years, l e t ' s  s a y ,  between 

t h e  p r e s e n t  and Janua ry  of  1978 -- 
A So, l e t ' s  p u t  it backwards. It would be ,  

you know, much b e t t e r  f o r  m e  t o  answer you t h a t  

q u e s t i o n ,  

Q L e t ' s  s a y ,  J anua ry ,  1979. 

Tha t  w i l l  be b e t t e r .  

A J anua ry ,  19793 

Q Between Janua ry ,  1979 and t h e  p r e s e n t .  

A The p r e s e n t  day today?  Okay. 

Q When you w e r e . a r r e s t e d  o r  o t h e r w i s e  t a k e n  

cus tody  i n  t h e  c o u n t r y  of  Brazil. and charged w i t h  

any v i o l a t i o n s  o f  t h e  laws of t h a t  coun t ry?  

A I have never  been i n  B r a z i l  i n  my l i f e ,  

so I have never  been a r r e s t e d  i n  B r a z i l ,  my f r i e n d .  



You should buy t h e  right papers. 

Q Have you been a r r e s t e d  i n  any,  o r  otherwisl 

t aken  i n t o  custody i n  any South o r  Cen t ra l  American 

count ry  w i t h i n  t h e  p a s t  t h r e e  and a h a l f  yea r s?  

A No, sir. Never i n  my l i f e  have I e v e r  

been a r r e s t e d  i n  any country i n  t h e  world except t h e  

United States of America. 
" ,*+ . . 8 .  

Have you, a t  any p o i n t  i n  t h e  past t h r e e  

years, been i n t e r r o g a t e d ,  o r  t o  your'knowledge, 

i n v e s t i g a t e d  f o r  anything having to do wi th  t h e  

possession or d i s t r i b u t i o n  o r  s a l e  o r  r e o e i p t  of 

any contraband drug? 

A Do you want t o  d e s c r i b e  i t ?  

Q Aside from t h e  United S t a t e s ,  of course? 

A No. 

Q Just t o  make s u r e  w e  have a l l  of t h e  

bases covered,  have you, a t  any t ime,  been e i t h e r  

de ta ined  o r  i n t e r r o g a t e d ,  o r  .to your knowledge, 

i n v e s t i g a t e d  i n  any South o r  Central American 

count ry  wi th  regard  t o  any m a t t e r s  p e r t a i n i n g  t o  any 
- - - - - 

d i s p o s i t i o n  of o r  c o n t a c t  wi th  any contraband drug 

o t h e r  than  i n  t h e  United S t a t e s ?  

A No, sir. 

(Off t h e  record . )  

MR. WILLIAMS: Rina, there ate just a 



couple  more i s o l a t e d  l i t t l e  d i l l i e s ,  and t h e n ,  w e  

w i l l  s t a r t  o f f  tomorrow morning wi th  Ca r lo s  Quesada. 

MS. COBAN: A l l  r i g h t .  However, tomorrow 

morning, as you may o r  may not be aware,  a t  9:00 

o ' c l o c k ,  I have t o  f i n i s h  up t h e  Rule t o  Show Cause. 

This d o e s n ' t  have to be on. 

(Off the r eco rd . )  

BY MR. WILLIAMS2 

Q M r .  Morales,  was it your unders tand ing  

when you were accepted i n t o  the United States  ~ a r B h a l  

Witneaa P r o t e c t i o n  Program that the formal  request 

f o r  i n c l u s i o n  i n  that program had t o  be made by some 

Department o f  J u s t i c e  a t t o r n e y  e i t h e r  o u t  of Main 

J u s t i c e  or  Uni ted  S t a t e s  A t to rney ' s  O f f i c e  o r  t h e  

S t r i k e  Force3 

A No. 

Q D o  you know who the  p r o s e c u t o r  was, i f ,  

i n  fact, there w a s  one? 

A No. 

Q (Cont inuing)  -- who reques t ed  o r  

sponsored your p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  t h e  Marsha l l ' s  

Program? 

A I b e l i e v e  I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  

q u e s t i o n  w i t h  r ega rd  t o  an a g e n t  by t h e  name of 

Raul DeArmas from I .R .S .  



Q My question is whether you had any 

conve r sa t ions  wfth  any government lawyer, p r o s e c u t o r  

p e r t a i n i n g  t o  your i n c l u s i o n  i n  the program? 

A Well, I did talk to a l o t  of A s s i s t a n t  

U.S.  At torneye.  

0 Did you t a l k  t o  any of them about g e t t i n g  

i n t o  the M a r s h a l l ' s  Program? 

A I b e l i e v e  t h a t  Mr* Rasenthal  was aware of 

it, and I do believe t h a t  M r .  Smargon was aware of  i t ,  

Q Did you specifically ask  either M r .  Rosentl 

or M r .  Smargon t o  t a k e  any o f f i c i a l  steps t o  effect 

your i n c l u s i o n  i n t o  t h e  program? 

A I do b e l i e v e  so. 

Q Which one? 

A I b e l i e v e  that t h e  two of them. 

Q D i d  e i t h e r  M r .  Smargon o r  Mr* Rosenthal  

i n t e r r o g a t e  you f o r  t h e  purpose of a c q u i r i n g  any 

persona1  in format ion  to be inc luded  i n  any documenta- 

t i o n  r e l a t i v e  t o  your g e t t i n g  i n t o  the M a r s h a l l ' s  

Program? 

- - - - - - -  

A _ N a p s i r , -  - - - - - - - - - - - -  ~ - ~ ~ ~ 

Q Did any other government lawyer make t h a t  

i n q u i r y  of you? 

A No, sir. 

Q Did any government lawyer present any 



papers to you for your signature? 

A No, sir. 

Q (Continuing) -- in connection with 
getting into the program? 

A No, sir. 

Q Then, your testimony is that, as you sit 

here now, you don't have any knowledge, based upon 

communications with any government agent or law 

lawyer as to whether any particula~ government 

lawyer war, responsible for your inclusion in the 

Program, and if so, who it was; is that correct? 

A Someone would have been responsible. 

The thing is that 1 only know about Raul DeArmas. 

Q Here's my questiont As you sit here -- 
A Here's my answer, William. 

We will go back again, you know, to 

square one. 

MS, COHANr All right, gentlemen, 

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q A s  you sit here now, Mr. Morales -- 
- - -  - A - Sucfi-inc~mpetenc~ in-asklng-que~fions.~ 

God , 

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q Is it your testimony that you have no T$- 

knowledge whether any particular government lawyer 



was instrumental in obtaining your fnclusion in the 

program? 

MS, COHAN: Objection, Asked and answered, 

You may tell him again. 

THE WITNESS: I don't know, I don't know, 

There must have been one, at leaet has to be, 

It's part of the procedure. I don't know 

which one, 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q You don't know who? 

A I don't know which one, 

Q Just one of the two so far as you know? 

A Just one of the two, or the two together, 

or maybe they delegate a third one, Maybe there were 

three, Maybe there were a hundred, Maybe all of 

them all the way up to Washington, 

Somebody up there loves me. 

MS, COHAN: That's why they sent you 

there. 

THE WITNESS: For sure. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Will you please recount to me, if you 

are able, Mr, Moxales, the various occasions during 

your experience as either a police informant or an 

intelligence operative to which you have -- 



A I wouUl like to be referred as my last 

position in the counterintelligence service, which 

I hold the rank there, so I don't feel downgraded 

since you are an attorney, you know, and 1 refer to 

you as an attorney, counselor, whatever, you know, 

I would like to be referred as a former commissar 

or commissar or the equivalent, which ia major. 

Q (Continuing) -- in which you have been 
asked or attempted to infiltrate in an undercover 

capacity any group or organization? How many times 

has that happened? 

You wouldn't have as much trouble with 

the question if the witness 'hadn ' interrupted it. 

Hers's the question, Mr. Moralesr Tell me 

please, sir, to the best of' your recollection, how 

many different times, either while functioning as 

a police informant or an intelligence operative, 

you have infiltrated or attempted to infiltrate, but 

not succeeded, some organization or group or 

combination or gathering of people consistently 

w i t h -  t h e  purposes o f  - your work? 

MS. COHAN: I'm going to object in terms 

of specific instances, but not in terms of the number 

of times he has infiltrated, which is 1 believe what 

the question calls for. 



MR. WILLIAMS; I don't understand your 

objection. I don't know that he does either, but you 

can go ahead and answer that question. 

MS. COHAN: He understands. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. The answer is yes. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q How many different times? 

A Successfully, let's say, the Orlando 

Bosch Organization, two caees that I was a witness 

for the Drug Enforcement Administration. 

Q For what? 

A Z was a witness, I was an informant, I - 

was the one to infiltrate two different narcotics 
- - - - .-. ' .---*-..*-. . - % .-.,"** ." , . . 

organizations - " ~  , - - -  .. .-.a ---.. in 1972, which, you know, that those _-- 
three cases resulted in me, you know, testifying in . > ---- . -.- .* - 

open couxt, in Federal Court, which were, you know, 
______---..*- ,.-A .( " .  

extremely successful. 

Q Those two organizations that you just 

referred to, were they here in the United States? 

A There were three. I said three. 

Q Orlando Bosch we have. 
- - - -  - - - - - - -  - - -  - - 

- - - - - - - - -  - - - 

A The Cuban power. Then, you have another 

narcotics organization in 1972. 

Q Here in the United States? 

A Here in the United States, and another 



narcotics organization either at the end of 1972, 

too, or around. 

Q Are those the only three? 

A And on both occasions, that I come out 

publicly, yes. I always succeed in my life? you know. 

I am a winner, Williams, and I am not a 

loser. 

Q Are there other occasions upon which, sir, 

you have, in the course of applying your trade either 

as an intelligence operative or as a police informant 

A I have never been a police informant, 

Mr. Williams. ----.a?-,..., 1 was K --" a Federal paid . _ __ informant. _ _ A. _. _*__ _ _ . I .. - 

have never been a police informant. ... " V ?  -. -* -" 

Q Are there other occasions upon which, sir, 

beaides the three that you have described to us, 

perhaps, while working abroad or while working for 

DISIP or while working for the Cubans when you did, 

infiltrated in an undercover or covert fashion same 

other organization or grouping of people for the 

purpose of gathering information? 
- - - - -  - - - -  - - - - -  - - 

- - - - -  

- - - - - A - No, Xir, because, you know, I 'm a very 

well-known person, yon know, and Ricardo Morales, 

you know, unless you ?re so stupid, you know, to let 

me get to the bottom of your organization, you know, 

you are calling for suicide. 



Q Is the answer to my last question no, 

A No. 

Q Had there ever been occasions upon-:which 

you have failed in attempting to infiltrate? 

A I never fail in my life of job, Mr. Willian 

Never, There is no room for failures there. 

Q Do I understand it, then, that during the 

time that you were doing intelligence gathering work - 
A I'm not being modest about it, 

Q Do I understand, then, that at the time 

that you were doing intelligence gathering work, 

apart from the three episodes that you have deacribed 

to us involving Mr. Bosch's Cuban Power, and the two 

narcotics organizations here in the United States, 

you've never had to infiltrate yourself into -- 
A Myself 3 

MS. COHAN: Let him finish the question. 

BY MR. WILLIAMSr 

Q (Continuing) -- into an organization of 
people for the purpose of getting information about 

them without their knowing about it? 

A No, 

Q Never had to do that? 

A (Nodding in the negative,) 



take that I 

MS. COHAN: Answer out loud. She can't 

down, 

THE WITNESS: Nope. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

Q What are t h e  two agencies o f  o r  two l a w  

enforcement agencies i n  the  United States for whom yot 

did t h i s  undercover infiltration work involving t h e  

n a r c o t i c s  ventures i n  1 9 7 2  and 1973? 

MS. COHAN: Objection, Asked and answerec 

He said D , E a A m  

MR, WILLIAMS: I didn't hear him. 

Is t h a t  what you s a i d  -- D,E,A.? 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 

BY MR. WILLIAMSt 

Q Who was o r  were t h e  case agent o r  agents? 

A What 3 

Q Who was or were t h e  c a s e  a g e n t  or a g e n t s  

in those D,E,A. undercover investigations? 

A I d o n ' t  recall t h e  name of t h e  case a g e n t s  

I d o n ' t  remember, 

I can t e l l  you the name of the attorneys 

for the drug defendants, 

MR. WILLIAMS: All right. We will stop 

for the day. 

MS. COHAN: Y e s .  



(Whereupon, a t  5 : 2 0  o'clock p.m. ,  

the deposition was recessed until Tuesday, April 13thr 

at 1300 o'clock p.m.)  
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